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Letter to Shareholders 
 

 
 

 
 

Mohan Jhawar 
Chairman cum Managing 

Director 
 
 

KCL World is going to make another iconic step 
toward Nation Development, by providing 
medical services in addition to infrastructure & 
construction service. 

 

Dear Shareowners, 
 

The most awaited moment has come again, another chance to 
express my views & share my feeling of rejoice with you all as we 
have already completed 26 year of success and stepped into 27th 
year of our existence as a company “KCL Infra Project Limited”. 
 
“I take this opportunity to thank the management team and all the 
employees for coming together to deliver the improved performance 
throughout the year and continuing their efforts during these 
COVID-19 times. I would also like to take this opportunity to 
express my gratitude to our shareholders, partners, bankers and all 
other stakeholders who have continued to support us during the 
transition phase” 

 

The world is in the throes of an unprecedented healthcare challenge. 
The spread of the novel Corona virus across the globe brought the 
healthcare fraternity together in this most difficult period for 
humanity. As the infection mounted and we lost many lives, medical 
professionals, scientists, researchers, pharmaceutical companies and 
policy makers have grappled to stop its advance. We at KCL World 
have resolved to fight this pandemic in every way that we can .Our 
mission of “Grow together” has taken on a new meaning and purpose.  

 
KCL Infra Projects Limited India one of the leading technology, 
engineering and construction company has multiple operating 
segments under the roof of KCL World. Looking at the current 
global scenario Company wishes to diversify it’s business in health 
care  sector. 
 
Performance 2020-21 

During this financial year that has been affected by the Pandemic, we 
saw silver lining as well. Bringing more innovation to life and with 
the commitment to create healthier Communities with patient-
centric approaches will be our overarching purpose that is the reason 
that we provided our services as “COVID Care Center” during 2nd 
wave of pandemic. 
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Our Company is constantly focusing on developing value for all stakeholders thereby focusing on Nation Building 
and so is the tagline affixed to this 26th annual report i.e., “Adding Years to Life”. KCL has always been dedicated 
in providing infrastructure facility that has lasted long for years, but as we all have seen in 2nd wave of pandemic 
importance of health care has increased from just bare minimum , this sector has been largely immune to economic 
downturns. During this period the whole Medical sector was overwhelmed with huge no of patients affected by the 
covid 19 virus, the basic medical facilities became far fetched for many people. Even those with other diseases faced 
difficulties to access the Medical Care, Hence KCL world has taken big step for contributing toward nation by 
providing infrastructure as well as medical facility. 

 
Thank you for the confidence, you continue to repose in our Company. I look forward to the same in the years 
ahead. 

 
 

Best Wishes 
Mohan Jhawar 

Managing director 
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NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that the 26th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of KCL Infra Projects 
Limited will be through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio-Visual Mode on 30th September, 2021, 
Thursday, at 11.00 A.M. to transact the following businesses: Details of the meeting are as follows: 

Topic: 26th Annual General Meeting 

Time: Sep 30, 2021 11:00 PM India 

 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

i. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the company for the financial  
year ended on March 31, 2021 including the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021 the Statement of 
Profit and Loss Accounts and Cash flow statement for the year ended on that date along with 
reports of the Board of Director’s and the Auditor’s thereon. 

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2021 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid before this 
meeting, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 

ii. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Manoj Kumar Chaurasiya (DIN: 08302587), who is liable to 
retire by rotation at this Annual General meeting and being eligible has offered himself  for  re-
appointment. 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013, who retires by rotation at this meeting be and is hereby appointed as a 
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.” 

SPECIALBUSINESS: 

 
iii. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary  Resolution: 

 
Increase in Authorised Share Capital of the Company and consequential amendment in Memorandum 
of Association of the Company 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 61 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof) and the Rules framed 
thereunder and  applicable provision of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for increase in the 
Authorised Share Capital of the Company from existing Rs. 5,50,00,000 (Rupees Five Crore Fifty Lakh) 
divided into  2,75,00,000 (Two Crore Seventy Five Lakh ) Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each to Rs. 55,00,00,000 ( 
Rupees Fifty Five Crore) divided into 27,50,00,000 (Twenty Seven Crore Fifty Lakh)  Equity Shares of Rs. 
2/- each ranking pari passu in all respect with the existing Equity Shares of the Company as per the 
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Section 13 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded, for alteration of 
Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company by substituting in its place and stead the 
following:-  

 
“V. The Authorised Capital of the Company is 55,00,00,000 ( Rupees Fifty Five Crore) divided into 
27,50,00,000 (Twenty Seven Crore Fifty Lakh) equity shares of Rs. 2/- each with power to increase and/or 
reduce the capital of the Company as provided in the Articles of Association of the Company.”  

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the 
Board of Directors of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to take all such steps 
as may be required in this connection including seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this 
Resolution and to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard.” 

 
 

iv. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 

Voluntary Delisting of Equity Shares of the Company from the Metropolitan Stock Exchange:- 
 

“RESOLVED THAT subject to all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or reenactments thereof for the time being in force) and to the extent Rules 
notified therein, the Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956, and the rules framed thereunder, the Listing 
Agreements with the Metropolitan Stock Exchange, SEBI (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations 2009 as 
amended, and subject to such approvals, permissions and sanctions, as may be necessary, and subject to the 
compliance with other statutory formalities and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be 
prescribed or imposed by any authority including the Stock Exchanges, while granting such approvals, 
permissions or sanctions, which may be agreed by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Board”) or a Committee of Directors/ persons authorized by the Board, the consent of 
the shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the Board to voluntarily delist the equity shares of the 
Company from Metropolitan Stock Exchanges .  

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors or Company Secretary of the Company  be and are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Company to do all such acts, deeds and things which they may consider proper 
and desirable and settle any question, difficulties or doubts that may arise in regard to delisting of the 
equity shares from Metropolitan  Stock Exchanges.” 

 
By order of the Board 

KCL Infra Projects Limited 

sd/- sd/ 

 

Date: August 10,2021             Mohan Jhawar     Rahul Khande 
  Place: Thane             DIN: 00495473                   DIN: 08095192 

                         Managing Director                             Director 
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NOTES:- 

a) The Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the Special 
Business under item no 3 and 4 as stated above in annexed hereto. 

b) In view of the COVID-19 pandemic and the need for ensuring social distancing, the Government of India, 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) allowed conducting Annual General Meeting through video conferencing 
(VC) or other audio-visual means (OAVM) without the physical presence of Members at a common venue. 
Accordingly, MCA issued Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 
and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 (“MCA Circulars”), prescribing the procedures and manner of 
conducting the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM. Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) 
also vide its Circular dated May 12, 2020 (“SEBI Circular”), permitted holding of Annual General Meetings 
through VC/OAVM. In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, MCA Circulars 
and applicable provisions of the SEBI Circular, the 26th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members will be 
held through VC/ OAVM. Hence, Members can attend and participate in the AGM through VC/OAVM only. 
The venue of the Meeting shall be deemed to be the registered office of the Company. 

c) Since this General Meeting is held through VC/OAVM the physical attendance of members is dispensed with 
and no proxies would be accepted by the Company pursuant to the relevant MCA Circulars. 

d) No attendance slip/route map has been sent along with this Notice of the Meeting as the meeting is held through 
Audio Visual means. 

e) The attendance through VC/OAVM is restricted and hence members will be allowed on first come first serve 
basis. However, attendance of Members holding more than 2% of the shares of the Company, and Directors and 
Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
the Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Auditors will not be restricted on first come first serve basis. 

f) Members attending the Meeting through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purposes of reckoning of Quorum 
under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

g) In line with the MCA Circulars and the SEBI Circular, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the 
website of the Company at www.kclinfra.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock 
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and 
www.msei.in respectively. 

h) Members are requested to notify immediately changes, if any, in their registered addresses to the Company's 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents Adroit Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd., 17/20, Jafferbhoy Industrial Estate, 
Makwana Road, Marol Naka, Andheri (E), Mumbai- 400059. Members are also requested to furnish their Bank 
details to the company's Share Transfer Agents immediately for printing the same on the dividend 
warrants/Cheques to prevent fraudulent encashment of the instruments. 

i) Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holding to dematerialized 
form to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management. Members can 
contact the Company for assistance in this regard. Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are 
requested to bring their Client ID and DP ID numbers for easy identification of attendance at the meeting and 
number of shares held by them. 

j) Members holding shares in physical form in identical order of names in more than one folio are requested to 
send to the Company, the details of such folios together with the share certificates for consolidating their 
holdings in one folio. A consolidated share certificate will be returned to such Members after making requisite 
changes thereon. 
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k) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has taken a ”Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” by 
allowing paperless compliances by Companies and has issued a circular on April 21, 2011 stating that the 
service of document by a Company can be made through electronic mode. 

l) In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under 
and the SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015, the Members are provided with the facility to cast their vote 
electronically, through the e-voting services provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL), 
on all the resolutions set forth in this Notice. Resolution(s) passed by Members through remote e-voting/ e-
voting is deemed to have been passed as if they have been passed at the AGM. 

m) CS Vishakha Agrawal of Vishakha Agrawal & Associates., Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership No. 
39298) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process (including the 
Ballot Form received from the Members who do not have access to the e-voting process) in a fair and 
transparent manner. 

n) A member may participate in the general meeting even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting 
but shall not be allowed to vote again. 

o) The chairman shall, at the general meeting at the end of discussion on the resolution on which voting is to be 
held, allow voting with assistance of scrutinizer, by using an e-voting system for all the members who are present 
at the general meeting but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facilities. 

p) If a company opts to provide the same electronic system as used during the remote e-voting during the general 
meeting, the said facility shall be in operation till all the resolutions are considered and voted upon in the meeting 
and may be used for voting by the member attending the meeting and who have not exercised their vote through 
remote e-voting. 

q) Considering the difficulties caused due to the Covid-19 pandemic, MCA and SEBI have dispensed with the 
requirement of printing and sending physical copies of the Annual Report and the Notice of this Meeting and the 
Annual Reports have been sent via email to all those members who have registered their email ids with the 
Company or the Registrar and Transfer Agent as on Wednesday, September 8th, 2021. 

r) The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on following Stock Exchanges in India: 

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 25, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 
001 

Metropolitian Stock Exchange of India Limited. Vibgyor Towers, 4th floor, Plot No C 62, G - Block, Opp. 
Trident Hotel, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 098 

s) The Company has designated an exclusive email ID called info@kclinfra.com for redressal of Members' 
complaint/grievances. In case you have any queries/complaints or grievances,  than  please write to us at 
cs@kclinfra.com 

t)  Members can avail facility of nomination in respect of shares held by them in physical form pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013. Members desired to avail of this facility may send their 
nomination in the prescribed Form No. SH-13 duly filled into the office of Adroit Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd., 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. Members holding shares in electronic mode may contact 
their respective Depository Participants for availing this facility.      
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u)  The instructions of shareholders for E Voting and joining Virtual Meetings are as under:  
 

(i)      The voting period begins on Monday, September 27th, 2021 (9:00 AM) and ends on Wednesday, 
September 29th, 2021 (05:00 P.M). During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either 
in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date September 21st, 2021 may cast their vote 
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting 
venue. 
 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all 
shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-
institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.  

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed 
entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and 
passwords by the shareholders.  

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been 
decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through 
their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be 
able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless 
authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process. 

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting 
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are 
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to 
access e-Voting facility. 

 

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below: 

Type of 
shareholders 

Login Method 

 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in Demat mode 
with CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 
existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting 
page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / 
Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit  
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option 
for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information 
provided by company. On clicking the e-voting option, the user will be able to see 
e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
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Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting 
Service Providers. so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website 
directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available 
on  www.cdslindia.com home page or click on 
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in 
the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services 
website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once 
the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon 
under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. 
You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-
Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click 
on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed 
to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2) If the user is not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen 
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat 
account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name 
or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their Depository 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After 
Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-
Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after 
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
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Participants or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

  

 
 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

     

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 022- 
23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 
  

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30   

          

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders other 
than individual holding in Demat form. 

 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 
 

2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 
 

3) Now enter your User ID  
 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company. 
 

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
 

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier 
e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  

 

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 



12 

 

 For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding 
shares in Demat. 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 

 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence 
number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 
Bank 
Details 

 OR Date of 
Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 
recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, 
please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details 
field. 

 
(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 
(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. 

However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein 
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this 
password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which 
they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly 
recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. 
 

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice. 
 

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote. 
 

(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the 
Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 

(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 
 

(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be 
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” 
and accordingly modify your vote. 

 

(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
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(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page. 
 

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification 
code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 
 

(xvi) Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Voting only. 
 

 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log 

on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module. 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. 

The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval 

of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  

 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of 

the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 
 

 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. 
together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the 
Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; cs@kclinfra.com (designated email address by company)   , 
if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to 
verify the same. 

   

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM/EGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING 
DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM/ EGM is same as the instructions 
mentioned above for e-voting. 
 

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed 
after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting. 
  

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they 
will not be eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM. 

 
4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience. 

 

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting. 

 

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is 
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
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7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register 

themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 2 days prior to meeting mentioning 
their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The 
shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 
2 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile 
number at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.  
 

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 
views/ask questions during the meeting. 
 

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, 
shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the EGM/AGM. 

 
10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the EGM/AGM and if the 

same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by 
such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only 
to the shareholders attending the meeting. 

 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 
COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id. 

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP)  

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 
Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through 
Depository. 

Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting (In pursuance of 
Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015:- 

 
 

1. Name of Director Mr. Mohan 
Jhawar 

Mrs. Sunita 
Vora 

Mr. Archit  

Yadav 

Mr. Manoj 
Chaurasiya 

Mr. Rahul 
Khande 

Mr. 
Moeenuddin 
Makrani 

2. Date of Birth 30/08/1967 09/11/1973 14/11/1986 02/07/1975 16/08/1990 11/03/1963 

3. Date of 
Appointment / 
Re-Appointment 

01/10/2019 01/10/2019 31/08/2019 31/08/2019 30/03/2018 14/02/2020 

4. Qualification Chartered 
Accountant 

M.Com MBA 
Marketing 
& Real 
Estate 

D.Sc. 
(Computer 
Science) 

B.com, MBA M. Tech., 
Advance 
Diploma in 
Management, 
L.L.B. 



15 

 

5. Expertise Rich and vast 
experience in the 
field of 
Infrastructure, 
Management & 
finance 

Finance Educatio
n, 
Training 
& 
Placeme
nt 

Education, 
Training & 
Placement 

Rich and vast 
experience in 
the field of 
Finance & 
Marketing 

Rich and vast 
experience in 
the field of 
Engineering, 
Finance & Law 

6. Other 
Directorship 
held excluding 
Private 
Companies as 
on 
31st March, 2021 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

7. Chairman/Memb
er of the 
Committee of 
Board of the 
Directors of 
the Company 

Chairman Risk 
Management 
Committee 

Chairman 
Management 
Committee 

Member - 
Audit 
Committee 
Risk 
Management 
Committee 

Management 
Committee 

Stake holders 
Relationship 
Committee 

Chairman - 
Nomination & 
Remuneration 
Committee 

Chairman -
Audit 
Committee 
Stakeholders 
Relationship 
Committee 
 
Member –
Nomination & 
Remuneration 
Committee 
Risk 
Management 
Committee 
 
Management 
Committee 

-  Member 
Audit 
Committee 
Risk 
Management 
Committee 

Management 
Committee 
Stake holders 
Relationship 
Committee 
 
Nomination & 
Remuneration 
Committee 

  Member- Audit 
Committee 

    

  Stakeholders 
Relationship 
Committee 

    

8. No. of Shares 
held as on 31st 
March 2021 

38,02,831 250 - - -s  



16 

 

 
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

                                     (Pursuant to section 102 of Companies Act, 2013) 
 

As required by section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the following explanatory statement sets out all 
material facts relating to the businesses mentioned under item no. 3 and 4  of the accompanying notice: 

ITEM NO. 3 

 Increase in Authorised Share Capital of the Company and consequential amendment in Memorandum of 

Association of the Company: 

The present Authorised Share Capital of the Company is 5,50,00,000 (Rupees Five Crore Five Lakh) divided into 
2,75,00,000 (Two Crore Seventy Five Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each Considering the increased fund 
requirements of the Company, the Board at its Meeting held on August 10,2021, had accorded its approval for 
increasing the Authorised Share Capital from existing Rs. 5,50,00,000 (Rupees Five Crore Fifty Lakh) divided 
into  2,75,00,000 (Two Crore Seventy Five Lakh ) Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each to Rs. 55,00,00,000 ( Rupees Fifty 
Five Crore) divided into 27,50,00,000 (Twenty Seven Crore Fifty Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each, subject to 
shareholders approval.  

It is therefore proposed to increase the Authorised Share Capital of the Company from 5,50,00,000 (Rupees Five 
Crore Fifty Lakh) divided into  2,75,00,000 (Two Crore Seventy Five Lakh ) Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each to Rs. 
55,00,00,000 ( Rupees Fifty Five Crore) divided into 27,50,00,000 (Twenty Seven Crore Fifty Lakh) Equity Shares of 
Rs. 2/- by creation of 49,500,000 (Forty Nine Crore Five Lakh Only) additional equity share of Rs. 2/- each ranking 
paripassu with the existing Equity Shares in all respects as per the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the 
Company.  
 
Consequently, Clause V of the Memorandum of Association would also require alteration so as to reflect the 
changed Authorised Share Capital.  
 
The proposal for increase in Authorised Share Capital and amendment of Memorandum of Association of the 
Company requires approval of members at a general meeting. 
   
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives, are in any way 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolution.  

The consent of the members is, therefore, being sought for passing the aforesaid resolution of the notice as an 
Ordinary Resolution.  

ITEM NO. 4 
  
 Voluntary Delisting of Equity Shares of the Company from the Metropolitan Stock Exchange:- 

The equity shares KCL Infra Projects Limited are presently listed on the BSE Limited (“BSE”) and Metropolitan 
Stock Exchange. the Board of the Directors of the Company proposing to make a voluntary delisting offer to the 
public shareholder with a view to delist the equity shares of the Company from Metropolitan Stock Exchange. 
The objective of the Delisting Proposal to save time and cost for compliance with various clauses of the Listing 
Agreement with Exchange. In terms of regulation 8(1)(b) of the SEBI (Delisting) Regulations, the delisting 
Proposal requires the approval of the shareholders of KCL Infra Projects Limited by way of a special resolution 
passed. Further, as per proviso to regulation 8(1)(b) of the SEBI (Delisting) Regulations, the special resolution 
passed by the shareholders may be acted upon only if the votes cast by the public shareholders in favour of the 
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Delisting Proposal amount to at least two times the number of votes cast by the public shareholders against it. 
The shareholder’s approval is being sought by passing a Special Resolution for Delisting of the Company’s 
Equity Shares from the aforementioned Stock Exchange in accordance with the provisions of SEBI (Delisting) 
Regulations. Your Directors recommend the Special Resolution for approval of the shareholders.  

None of the Directors, Managers, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, in any way, is concerned or 
interested in the resolution except to the extent of their shareholding/ shareholding of their associates as 
Promoter/ Promoter Group in the Company. 

 
 

By order of the Board 

KCL Infra Projects Limited 

 

sd/- sd/- 

Mohan Jhawar Rahul Khande 
DIN: 00495473 DIN: 08095192 

                                                                                                         Managing Director                          Director 
 

  Date : 10/08/2021  

Place : Thane
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BOARDS' REPORT 

To, 

The Members of 

KCL INFRA PROJECTS LIMITED 

The Board of Directors hereby submits the report of the business and operations of your company (“the 
Company” or “KCL Infra Projects Limited”) along with the audited financial statements, for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2021. 

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: 
The financial performance of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021 is summarized below:- 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars Current year 

(2020-21) 

Previous Year 

(2019-20) 

Revenue from Operation 
(Including other Operating 
Income) 

441.13 1406.76 

Other Income 70.45 91.38 
 

Total Income 511.58 1498.14 
 

Expenses (other than Finance Cost)               471.31 1385.93 
 

Finance Cost 26.42 43.81 
 

Total Expenses 497.73 1429.74 
 

Profit Before Tax 13.85 68.40 
 

Less: Current Tax 3.60 17.78 
 

Deferred Tax/Earlier Year Tax 0.50 0.51 
 

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 9.75 50.11 
 

Surplus brought forward from previous years 280.56 230.45 
 

Amount available for appropriations 290.31 280.56 
 

Earnings per share (T) :   
 

Basic 0.04 0.19 
 

                            Diluted 0.04 0.19 
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2. STATE OF COMPANY'SAFFAIRS: 

Despite of difficult market conditions, healthy competition in the market and lack of interest of the 
investors, the performance of your Company has been satisfactory and has been able to achieve the healthy 
growth for its stakeholders. The performance evaluations of the Company are as under; 

Revenue: During the financial year 2020-21, the revenue of the Company has decreased from Rs. 
1498.14to Rs. 511.58 

Expenses: In Financial Year ended 31 March, 2021, the   purchase & cost expense of the Company has decreased 
from Rs. 1429.74 Lacs to Rs. 497.73 Lacs as compared to the previous financial year ended on 31st March, 2020. But 
the finance cost of the Company is decreased by 17.39     Lacs as compared to the previous financial year 2019-20. 

  Depreciation: Depreciation increased from Rs 7.61 to Rs.8.14 in the current year. Depreciation is    in accordance 
with the provision of Schedule II of the Act. 

Profit before Tax: In the financial year 2020-21 the Revenue of the Company has decreased by 65.85% as 
compared to previous financial year 2019-20 consequently the profit has decreased by 79.75% and reached at Rs. 
13.85 Lacs. 

Share Capital: Equity share capital remains unchanged at Rs. 526.62 lacs  

Earnings per share: Basic & diluted Earnings per share (EPS) is Rs.0.04 Per share as against Rs.0.19 per share in 
the previous year 

 

     Tax Expenses: 

Tax Expenses : Increase / (Decrease) Increase / (Decrease) in % 
 

Current Tax (14.18) (79.75)% 
 

Deferred Tax (0.009) (1.94) % 
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3. SHARE CAPITAL 
The issued, subscribed, paid up equity capital as on March 31, 2021 was Rs. 52,66,20,000/- During the year 
under review, the Company has not issued shares to its shareholders. Further that none of the directors were 
holding convertible instruments as on date. 

4. DIVIDEND: 

Your Directors have considered it financially prudent in the long-term interest of the Company to reinvest 
the profits in the business of the Company to build a strong reserve base and grow the business of the 
Company. No final dividend has therefore been recommended for the year ended March 31st, 2021. 

5. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 
Management Discussion and Analysis as required under Listing Regulations has been annexed as 
“Annexure 5” which forms part of this report. 

6. PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
As per Companies Act, 2013 and as on date the company is neither having any Subsidiary Company u/s 2(87) 
nor any Associate Company u\s 2(6) and hence, do not call for any disclosure under this head. 

7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT: 

Your Company has incorporated the appropriate standards for corporate governance. Pursuant to 
Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the 
Company is not required to mandatorily comply with the provisions of certain regulations of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.Hence, company is not filing 
Corporate Governance Report to stock exchanges quarterly. However, as per Regulation 34(3) read with 
Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 company is 
giving report on corporate governance report in annual report of the company. Corporate Governance 
Report is as per annexed as “Annexure 6”. 

8. ANNUAL RETURN 

The Extract of Annual Return as required under section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form MGT-9 
is annexed here with for your kind perusal as“Annexure-2.” 

9. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT  

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their 
knowledge and ability, confirm that: 
a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021, the applicable accounting 

standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act, have been followed and there 
are no material departures from the same; 

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on 
that date; 

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

e) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 
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internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and 

f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

10. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
The Company's internal financial control framework is commensurate with the size and operations of 
the business and is in line with requirements of the Act. The Company's internal financial controls 
framework is based on the three lines of defense model. The Company has laid down standard 
operating procedures and policies to guide the operations of the business. Unit heads are responsible to 
ensure compliance with the policies and procedures laid down by the management. Robust and 
continuous internal monitoring mechanisms ensure timely identification of risks and issues. The 
management, Statutory and Internal Auditors undertake rigorous testing of the control environment of 
the Company. The board is of the opinion that the Company's internal financial controls were adequate 
and effective during the financial year 2020-21. 

11. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSON  
During the Year under review, the following changes have taken place in the Directors & KMPs of the 
Company. In compliance with the provisions of Section 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any Statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time 
being in force) and Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015, the composition of Board of Director 
and Key Managerial Personnel are as follows: - 
 

 
S.No
. 

Key Managerial 
Person Name 

DIN/ PAN Designation Date of 
Appointme
nt 

Date of 
Cessatio
n 

1. Mohan Jhawar 00495473 Managing Director 06/10/2005 - 
3. SunitaVora 06486614 Non-Executive 

Director 
30/05/2013 - 

4. Rahul Khande 08095192 Executive Director 30/03/2018 - 
5. Archit Yadav 07971657 Non-Executive 

Director 
07/09/2019 - 

6. Manoj Kumar 
Chaurasiya 

08302587 Non-Executive 
Director 

07/09/2019 - 

7. Moeenuddin Makrani 08546964 Non-Executive 
Director 

14/02/2020 - 

8. Sunny Khande EJXPK8836E Chief Financial Officer 16/05/2016 - 
10 Shruti Sikarwar IOHPS2214

M 
Company Secretary 06/07/2020 10/03/2021 

 
1. Ms. Shruti Sikarwar appointed as Company Secretary of the Company on July 06,2020. 
2. Ms.Shruti Sikarwar, Company secretary, tendered her resignation on March 10,2021 

 



    
12. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS  

Your Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors confirming that they meet the 
criteria of independence as prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Schedules and Rules issued there under as well as Regulation 16(1)(b) of Listing Regulations (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) for the time being in force). 

13. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The following Meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the Financial Year 2020-21: 

 
S. No. Date of 

Meeting 
Board 

Strength 
No. of 
Directors 
Present 

1. 31.07.2020 6 4 
2. 02.09.2020 6 3 
3. 15.09.2020 6 6 
4. 06.11.2020 6 6 
5. 12.02.2020 6 5 

 

14. BOARD EVALUATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules issued there under, Regulation 17(10) 
of the Listing Regulations and the circular issued by SEBI dated 5th January, 2017 with respect to Guidance Note 
on Board Evaluation, the evaluation of the annual performance of the Directors/Board/Committees was carried 
out for the financial year 2020-21. 

The board of directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board committees and 
individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the corporate governance requirements as 
prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation 2015. The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs 
from all the directors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of 
board processes, information and functioning, etc. 

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee 
members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee 
meetings, etc. The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) reviewed the 
performance of the individual directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual 
director to the Board and committee meetings. In addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects 
of his role. 

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of non-Independent directors, performance of 
the board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into account the views of 
executive directors and non-executive directors. The same was discussed in the board meeting that followed the 
meeting of the Independent Directors, at which the performance of the Board, its committees and individual 
directors was also discussed. 

15. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Directors will be introduced to all the Board members and the senior management personnel such as Chief 
Financial Officer, Company Secretary and various Department heads individually to know their roles in the 
organization and to understand the information which they may seek from them while performing their duties as 
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a Director. And meeting may be arranged for the Independent Directors with aforesaid officials to better 
understand the business and operation of the Company.  

As a part of continuous updating and familiarization with the Company, every Independent Director will be 
taken for visits to the factory or manufacturing units and other branch of the company where the officials of the 
various departments apprise them of the operational and sustainability aspects of the plants to enable them to 
have full understanding on the activities of the Company and initiatives taken on safety, quality etc. The 
Company may also circulate news and articles related to the industry from time to time and may provide 
specific regulatory updates. 

16. AUDITORS 
M/s Scan & Co. (previously known as M.S. Singhatwadia & Co.,) Chartered Accountants, were appointed as 

Statutory Auditors of the Company at the AGM held on 30th September,2019, for a term of five consecutive years to 
hold office from the conclusion of that meeting till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to 
be held in 2024.  

In accordance with the Companies Amendment Act, 2017, enforced on May 7, 2018 by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, the appointment of Statutory Auditors is not required to be ratified at every Annual General Meeting. In view 
of such omission of proviso, agenda item relating to ratification of Statutory Auditors is not included in the Notice of 
ensuing Annual General Meeting.  

17. AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Board has appointed M/s Scan & Co. (previously known as M.S. Singhatwadia & Co.,), Chartered Accountants 
to conduct the Statutory Audit for the year 2020-21. There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the 
Auditors '  Report which require any clarification/explanation. The Notes on financial statements are self-
explanatory, and needs no further explanation. Further the Auditors' Report for the financial year ended, 31st March, 
2021 is annexed herewith for your kind perusal and information. 

18. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Board has appointed CS Vishakha Agrawal, Practicing Company Secretary, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the 
financial year 2020-21. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 is annexed herewith 
marked as “Annexure-3” to this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report. 

19. BOARD COMMITEE 

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, Company had constituted the following Board Committees: 

1. Audit Committee; 
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee; and 
3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee; 
4. Risk Management Committee; and 
5. Management Committee. 

The composition of all Committees has been stated under Corporate Governance Report forming an integral part 
of Annual Report.  

20. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

The details in respect of employees of the Company will be provided upon request. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, 
the Report and Accounts are being sent to the members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information on 
employees' particulars which is available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company 
during business hours on working days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing AGM. If any member is 
interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such member may write to the Company Secretary of the Company in this 
regard. 
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21. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR/AND INVESTMENTS 
Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided along with the purpose 
for which the loan or guarantee or security is proposed to be utilized by the recipient are provided in the 
Financial Statement (Please refer to Note No.6 and 7 to the standalone Financial Statement). 

22. DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 

◆ As per the Provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 entered 
into with the stock exchanges, corporate governance report with auditors' certificate there on and management 
discussion and analysis are attached, which form part of this report. 

◆ Details of the familiarization programme of the independent directors are available on the website of the 
Company (www.kclinfra.com) 

◆ The Company has formulated and published a Whistle Blower Policy to provide Vigil Mechanism for 
employees including directors of the Company to report genuine concerns. The provisions of this policy are in 
line with the provisions of the Section 177(9) of the Act. The whistle blowing Policy is available on the 
company's website at (www.kclinfra.com) 

23. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, AND 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
Your Company is committed to provide the healthy environment to all its employees, the company has in place 
a Prevention of the Sexual Harassment Policy and an Internal complaints redressal mechanism as per the 
requirements of  Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

There was no complaint received from any employee during the financial year 2020-21, hence no complaints are 
outstanding as on 31.03.2021. 

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

None of the transaction with related parties (related to business) falls under the scope of Section 188(1) of the 
Act, Information on transactions with related parties pursuant to section 134 (3) (h) of the Act read with rule 8(2) 
of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in “Annexure 1” in Form AOC-2 and same forms part of this 
report. 

25. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of 
conservation of energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities 
undertaken by the company during the year under review. 

26. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO  

There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review. 

27. RISK MANAGEMENT 

In today's economic environment, Risk Management is a very important part of business. The main aim of risk 
management is to identify, monitor & take precautionary measures in respect of the events that may pose risks for 
the business. The Board reviewing the risk management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. Major risks identified 
by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis by 
keeping Risk Management Report before the Board & Audit Committee periodically. 

28. FIXED DEPOSITS/ DEPOSITS: 

During the year under review your Company has not accepted or invited any fixed deposits from the public and 
there were no outstanding fixed deposits from the public as on the Balance Sheet date. 

Your Company has not accepted deposit from the public fallingwithintheambitofSection73oftheCompaniesAct, 
2013 along with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) rules, 2014. 
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29. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 164(2): 

None of the Directors of your Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors as specified under 
Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 

30. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS: 
During the financial year 2020-21, there were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or 
Tribunals which would impact the going concern status of your Company and its future operations. 

31. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

The Audit Committee Comprises of Three Independent Directors and one executive director, namely Mr. Archit 
Yadav as Chairman ,Ms. Sunita Vora as member, Mr. Mohan Jhawar as member and Mr. Moeenuddin    
Makrani as the member of the Committee. All recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted 
by the Board. 

The Committee inter alia reviews Internal Control Systems and reports of Internal Auditors ad compliance of 
various regulations. The Committee also reviews at length the Financial Statements before they are placed 
before the Board of Directors of the company. 

32. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

Stakeholders' relations have been cordial during the year, as a part of compliance, your Company has 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee to consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of your 
Company. There were no grievances pending as on 31st March, 2021.A confirmation to this effect has been 
received from your Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. 

33. NOMINATION, REMUNERATION AND EVALUATION POLICY: 
The Board has on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has framed a policy for 
selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration and the evaluation. The 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy is forming part of Director's Report as “Annexure 4”. 

34. PARTICIPATION IN THE GREEN INITIATIVE: 

Your Company continues to wholeheartedly participate in the Green Initiative under taken by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (MCA) for correspondences by Corporate to its Members through electronic mode. All the 
Members are requested to join the said program by sending their preferred e-mail addresses to their Depository 
Participant. 

35. INTERNALAUDIT: 

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s Jain Tiwaddi & Associate, Chartered Accountants as Internal 
Auditors of your Company for financial year 2020-21 

36. TRANSFER TO INVESTORS EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF) 
As per the provisions of section 125 of the Companies Act 2013 and as per the rule 3 of the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (awareness and protection of investors) Rules, 2001, No Amount is pending to be transferred to 
IEPF. 

37. CODE OF FAIR DISCLOSURE OF UNPUBLISHED PRICE SENSITIVE INFORMATION AND CODE OF 
CONDUCT UNDER SEBI (PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING) REGULATIONS, 2015  
 
Pursuant to Regulation 8 of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 the Board to Directors has 
formulated and adopted the “Code of Practices and Procedures for fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price sensitive 
Information” (Code of Fair Disclosure) of the Company. 
The Board has also formulated and adopted “Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading” (Code of 
Conduct) of the company as prescribed under Regulation 9 of the said Regulation. 
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The Board of Directors of your Company acknowledges their sincere appreciation for the support extended by the 
statutory authorities, the stock exchanges, advisors, shareholders and staff of the Company for the valuable 
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Annexure - 1 

AOC-2 

Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with 
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 

including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto. 
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis: 
 

Name (s) 
of Related 
Party 

Nature 
of 
Relations
hip 

Duration 
of 
Contrac
t 

Salie
nt 
Ter
ms 

Dates of 
Approval by 
the Board 

Amou
nt (In 
Rs.) 

Amount 
paid as 
advance, if 
any 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm's length basis: 
 

Name (s) 
of Related 
Party 

Nature 
of 
Relations
hip 

Duration 
of 
Contrac
t 

Salie
nt 
Ter
ms 

Dates of 
Approval by 
the Board 

Amou
nt (In 
Rs.) 

Amount 
paid as 
advance, if 
any 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

 

Note: The details of all related party transactions as per Accounting Standard 18 have been disclosed in Notes to Accounts of 
Financial Statements. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

KCL Infra Projects Limited 
 
 
   sd/-  

       Mohan Jhawar   

  Managing Director 

     DIN: 0049547 
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ANNEXURE – 2    
FORMNO.MGT-9    

Extract of Annual Return as on The Financial Year Ended On 31st March 2021  
  

 
     

[Pursuant to section92(3) of theCompaniesAct,2013 andrule12(1)of the Companies (Management and 
Administration)Rules, 2014] 

 
     

 
     

I.REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:     
 

     

i. CIN L45201MH1995PLC167630 
   

ii. Registration Date 21-07-1995 
   

iii. Name of the Company KCL INFRA PROJECTS LIMITED 
   

iv. Category/Sub-Category of the 
Company 

Company limited by shares/Indian Non Govt 
Company 

   

v. 
Address of the Registered office 

and contact details 
B-3/204, Saket Complex Thane (West)  Thane MH 

400601 IN    
vi. Whether listed company YES 

   
vii. Name, Address and Contact 

details of Registrar and Transfer 
Agent, if any 

Adroit Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. 
17-20, Jafferbhoy Ind. Estate, 1st Floor, Makwana 

Road, 
Marol Naka, Andheri (E), Mumbai 400059, India. 

Website : www.adroitcorporate.com 

   

   

   
   

 
II.PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY    

 
     

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be 
stated:-  

Sr.No. Name and Description of main 
products/ services 

NIC Code of 
the Product/ 

service 
%  to total turnover of the company 

  

1 Other Civil Engineering Projects 4290 86.22 
  

 
     

 
     

III.   PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES   
 

     
KCL Infra Projects Limited has entered has entered into JV with RR Parkon ( Also Known as Ram Ratna 
Infrastrcture Private Limited) to undertake various projects in MP and CG region. The profit sharing 
ratio between RR parkon and KCL Infra Projects Limited is 55:45 
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as Percentage of Total Equity)     
i. Category-wise Share 

Holding         
      

Category of Shareholders 
No.of Shares held at the beginning 

of the year 
No.of Shares held at the 

end of the year 
% Change during the 

year 

 
Dema

t Physical Total 

% of 
Total 

Shares Demat 
Phys
ical Total 

% of 
Total 

Shares 

 

A. Promoters            

(1) Indian            

a) Individual/HUF 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 

b) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 

c) State Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 

d) Bodies Corporates 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 

e) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 

f) Directors 
38028

31 0 3802831 14.44 3802831 0 3802831 14.44 
0.0

0 

g) Directors Relatives 
23060

64 0 2306064 8.76 2306064 0 2306064 8.76 
0.0

0 

            

Sub Total : A(1) 
61088

95 0 6108895 23.20 6108895 0 6108895 23.20 
0.0

0 

            

(2) Foreign            

a) NRI - Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 

b) Other - Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 

c) Bodies Corporates 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 

d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 

            

Sub Total : A(2) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 

            
Total Shareholding of 
Promoters (A)=(A)(1) + 

(A)(2) 
61088

95 0 6108895 23.20 6108895 0 6108895 23.20 
0.0

0 

            

B. Public Shareholding            

(1) Institutions            

a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 

b) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 
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c) Central Govt. 29210 0 29210 0.11 29210 0 29210 0.11 
0.0

0 

d) State Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 

e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 

f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 

g) FIIs 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 
h) Foreign Venture Capital 

Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 

i) Any Other (Specify)            

            

Sub Total : B(1) 29210 0 29210 0.11 29210 0 29210 0.11 
0.0

0 

            

(2) Non - Institutions            

a) Bodies Corporates            

ai) Indian 
33897

67 938000 4327767 16.44 3053402 
9380

00 3991402 15.16 

-
1.2

8 

aii) Overseas 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 

b) Individuals            
bi) Individual Shareholders 

holding nominal share 
capital up to Rs. 1 Lakh 

58989
69 278630 6177599 23.46 6132143 

2786
30 6410773 24.35 

0.8
9 

bii) Individual Shareholders 
holding nominal share 

capital in excess of Rs. 1 
Lakh 

96798
59 0 9679859 36.76 9746744 0 9746744 37.02 

0.2
5 

c) Any Other (Specify)            

c-1) Non Resident Indians 
(Individuals) 7420 0 7420 0.03 1375 0 1375 0.01 

-
0.0

2 

c-2) Directors 250 0 250 0.00 250 0 250 0.00 
0.0

0 

c-3) Clearing Member 0 0 0 0.00 42351 0 42351 0.16 
0.1

6 

            

Sub Total : B(2) 
18976

265 1216630 20192895 76.69 18976265 
1216
630 20192895 76.69 

0.0
0 

            
Total Public Shareholding 

(B)=(B)(1) + (B)(2) 
19005

475 1216630 20222105 76.80 19005475 
1216
630 20222105 76.80 

0.0
0 

            
C. Shares held by 

Custodian for GDRs & 
ADRs            

a) Promoter & Promoter 
Group 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 

0.0
0 

b) Public 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 
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Sub Total : (C)(1) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 

            
Total Shareholding of 

Shares held by Custodian 
for GDRs & ADRs 

(C)=(C)(1) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 
0.0

0 

            

Grand Total (A + B + C) 
25114

370 1216630 26331000 100.00 25114370 
1216
630 26331000 100.00 

0.0
0 

 

ii. Shareholding of 
Promoters  

     
        

S. No. 
Shareholder’s 

Name 
No.of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year 

% 
Chang

e 
during 

the 
year 

  
No. of 
Shares 

% of total Shares of the 
company 

%of 
Shares 

Pledged 
/ 

encumb
ered to 

total 
shares 

No. of Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 

the 
company 

%of 
Sha
res 

Pled
ged 

/ 
enc
um

bere
d to 
total 
shar

es 

 

1 

MOHAN 
DEOKISHAN 

JHAWAR HUF . 854650 3.25 0.00 854650 3.25 
23.4

0 0.00 

2 
MANISHA 
JHAWAR 332187 1.26 54.04 332187 1.26 

54.0
4 0.00 

3 
MANAN 
JHAWAR 1057487 4.02 0.78 1057487 4.02 0.78 0.00 

4 

PRAMOD 
DEOKISAN 

JHAWAR HUF 61740 0.23 0.00 61740 0.23 0.00 0.00 

5 
MOHAN 
JHAWAR 3802831 14.44 0.00 3802831 14.44 0.00 0.00 
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TOTAL 6108895 23.20 3.07 6108895 23.20 6.35 0.00 

 
          

iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change)      

 

Particulars 
Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 

Shareholding at the end 
of the year 

No. of 
Shares 

% of the total 
shares of the 

Company 

No. of 
Shares  

% of total 
Shares of 

the 
Company 

1 At the beginning of the year       

 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Share during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. 

Allotment /transfer /bonus/Sweat equity etc.) 
Annexure  A Attached 

 At the End of the year       

    
     

5. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, 
Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):  

     
Particulars 

Shareholding at the beginning of the year 
Cumulative shareholding during the 

year 

No. of Shares % of the total shares of the 
Company 

No. of the 
Shares 

% of total Shares of the 
Company 

At the 
beginning 
of the year     
Date wise 
Increase / 

Decrease in 
Share 

holding 
during the 

year Annexure  B Attached 
At the End 
of the year     
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6. Indebtedness 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 
 

Particulars Secured Loans 
excluding deposits 

Unsecured 
Loans 

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of 
the financial year 
i) Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due but not paid 
iii) Interest accrued but not 

3,74,59,174 - - 

 
 

3,74,59,174 

Total (i+ii+iii)     3,74,59,174  3,74,59,174 

Change in Indebtedness during 
the financial year 

    

- Addition 19,88,072 - - 1,9,88,072 
- Reduction 4,94,055 - - 4,94,055 

Net Change 14,94,017 - - 14,94,017 

Indebtedness at the 
end of the financial year 
i) Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due but not paid 
iii) Interest accrued but not due 

 
 

3,89,53,191 
 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

3,89,53,191 
 
 

Total (i+ii+iii) 3,89,53,191 - - 3,89,53,191 

 
 

7. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager 

Sr. 
No
. 

Particulars of Remuneration         Managing Director    
/Director 

Total 
Amount 

1. Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions 

containedinsection17(1) of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)Income-tax
Act,1961 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary 
undersection17(3) Income- 
taxAct,1961 

        0         0 

 
 

 

   

 
 

 

2. Stock Option NIL NIL 

3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL 

4. Commission 
- as % of profit 
- others, specify… 

NIL NIL 

5. Others, please specify NIL NIL 
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6. Total(A)         0         0 

 Ceiling as per the Act NIL NIL 

 
 

B. Remuneration to other directors: 
 

Sr. 
No
. 

Particulars of Remuneration Name of 
Director 

Total 
Amou
nt 

 Independent Directors 
- Fee for attending board committee meetings 
- Commission 
- Others, please specify 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 Total(1)   

 Other Non- Executive Directors 
- Fee for attending board committee meetings 
- Commission 
- Others, please specify 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 Total(2) NIL NIL 
 Total(B)=(1+2) NIL NIL 
 Total Managerial Remuneration NIL NIL 
 Overall Ceiling as per the Act   

 
 

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD 
 

Sr.No. Particul
ars of 
Remun
eration 

Key Managerial Personnel 

  Company Secretary CFO Total 

1. Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 

section17(1)of the Income-tax Act,1961 

1,40,935 
- 

4,80,000 
- 

6,20,935 
- 

 (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)Income-tax 
Act,1961 

- - - 

 (c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 
17(3)Income-tax Act,1961 

- - - 

2. Stock Option - - - 

3. Sweat Equity - - - 

4. Commission 
- as % of profit 
- others, specify… 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 
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5. Others, please specify - - - 

6. Total 1,40,935 

 
4,80,000 6,20,935 

 
 
 

PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 
 

Type Section of 
the 
companies 
Act 

Brief 
description 

Details of Penalty/ 
Punishment/Compo
unding fees 
imposed 

Authority[RD 
/NCLT/Court] 

Appeal 
made. 
If any 
(give 
details) 

A. Company 

Penalty 
Punishment 
Compounding 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

B. Directors 

Penalty 
Punishment 
Compounding 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

C. Other Officers In Default 

Penalty 
Punishment 
Compounding 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 
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                                                                                 Annexure A 
Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change) 

Particulars  

    

No. of Shares held at 
the beginning of the 

year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

Name of 
Promoter's As On Date 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
shares of 

the 
company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total shares 
of the company 

At the beginning of the 
year 

MOHAN 
DEOKISHAN 
JHAWAR HUF . 01-04-2020 854650 3.25 854650 3.25 

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the 
year 

  29/05/2020 -200000 0.76 654650 2.49 

  04/09/2020 200000 0.76 854650 3.25 

At the End of the year   31/03/2021 0 0.00 854650 3.25 

              

At the beginning of the 
year 

PRAMOD 
DEOKISAN 
JHAWAR HUF 01-04-2020 61740 0.23 61740 0.23 

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the 
year     NIL NIL     

At the End of the year   31/03/2021 0 0.00 61740 0.23 

              
At the beginning of the 
year 

MOHAN 
JHAWAR 01-04-2020 3802831 14.44 3802831 14.44 

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the 
year     NIL NIL     

At the End of the year   31/03/2021 0 0.00 3802831 14.44 
              
At the beginning of the 
year 

MANISHA 
JHAWAR 01-04-2020 332187 1.26 332187 1.26 

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the 
year     NIL NIL   0.78 

At the End of the year   31/03/2021 0 0.00 332187 1.26 
              
At the beginning of the 
year 

MANAN 
JHAWAR 01-04-2020 1057487 4.02 1057487 4.02 

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the 
year     NIL NIL   5.38 

At the End of the year   31/03/2021 0 0.00 1057487 4.02 
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                                                                          Annexure B 
Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

        

For Each of the Top 10 
Shareholders 

    

No. of Shares held at 
the beginning of the 

year 

Cumulative 
Shareholding during the 

year  

Name of 
Shareholder's 

As On Date No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
shares of the 

company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of the 

company 

 

 
At the beginning of the 
year 

PATWA FINLEASE 
LTD. 01-04-2020 1200712 4.56 1200712 4.56  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Share holding 
during the year     NIL NIL      
At the End of the year   31/03/2021 0 0.00 1200712 4.56  
               

At the beginning of the 
year 

FREQUENT STOCK 
AND SHARES 
PRIVATE LIMITE 01-04-2020 910910 3.46 910910 3.46  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year   17/07/2020 -10 0.00 910900 3.46  
    24/07/2020 -1 0.00 910899 3.46  
    14/08/2020 -2200 0.01 908699 3.45  
    21/08/2020 -50 0.00 908649 3.45  
    28/08/2020 648 0.00 909297 3.45  
    31/12/2020 -10000 0.04 899297 3.42  
    08/01/2021 -29032 0.11 870265 3.31  
    15/01/2021 -41298 0.16 828967 3.15  
    22/01/2021 -155114 0.59 673853 2.56  
    12/02/2021 -22343 0.08 651510 2.47  
    19/02/2021 -15586 0.06 635924 2.42  
    26/02/2021 -13184 0.05 622740 2.37  
    05/03/2021 -12931 0.05 609809 2.32  
    12/03/2021 -16559 0.06 593250 2.25  
    19/03/2021 -20946 0.08 572304 2.17  
    26/03/2021 -2275 0.01 570029 2.92  
At the End of the year   31/03/2021 0 0.00 570029 2.16  
               
At the beginning of the 
year 

SURESHCHANDRA 
SHAHRA 01-04-2020 826500 3.14 826500 3.14  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year     NIL NIL      
At the End of the year   31/03/2021 0 0.00 826500 3.14  
               
At the beginning of the UTKARSH 01-04-2020 5500 0.02 5500 0.02  
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year TRIVEDI 

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year   08/01/2021 10011 0.04 15511 0.06  
    15/01/2021 30505 0.12 46016 0.17  
    22/01/2021 123650 0.47 169666 0.64  
    29/01/2021 31000 0.12 200666 0.76  
    12/02/2021 304225 1.16 504891 1.92  
    19/02/2021 15653 0.06 520544 1.98  
    26/03/2021 -520544 2.67 0 0.00  
At the End of the year   31/03/2021 522744 1.99 522744 1.99  
               
At the beginning of the 
year 

SAROJ DEVI 
CHHABRA 01-04-2020 487470 1.85 487470 1.85  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year     NIL NIL      
At the End of the year   31/03/2021 0 0.00 487470 1.85  
               
At the beginning of the 
year KAMAL NACHANI 01-04-2020 375000 1.42 375000 1.42  
Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year     NIL NIL      
At the End of the year   31/03/2021 0 0.00 375000 1.42  
               
At the beginning of the 
year 

KESHAV KUMAR 
NACHANI 01-04-2020 375000 1.42 375000 1.42  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year     NIL NIL      
At the End of the year   31/03/2021 0 0.00 375000 1.42  
               
At the beginning of the 
year 

RAMESHWAR 
PATEL 01-04-2020 343000 1.30 343000 1.30  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year     NIL NIL      
At the End of the year   31/03/2021 0 0.00 343000 1.30  
               
At the beginning of the 
year 

ARCH FINANCE 
LTD. 01-04-2020 310418 1.18 310418 1.18  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year   28/08/2020 -310418 1.18 0 0.00  
At the End of the year   31/03/2021 0 0.00 0 0.00  
               
At the beginning of the 
year 

NEWGEN 
INTERNATIONAL 01-04-2020 0 0.00 0 0.00  
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PRIVATE LIMITED 

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year   28/08/2020 310418 1.18 310418 1.18  
At the End of the year   31/03/2021 0 0.00 310418 1.18  
               
At the beginning of the 
year RENU NACHANI 01-04-2020 255000 0.97 255000 0.97  
Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year     NIL NIL      
At the End of the year   31/03/2021 0 0.00 255000 0.97  
               
At the beginning of the 
year ANITA JAIN 01-04-2020 250000 0.95 250000 0.95  
Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Shareholding 
during the year     NIL NIL      
At the End of the year   31/03/2021 0 0.00 250000 0.95  
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Annexure ‘3’ 
 

FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021 

To, 
The Members, 
KCL Infra Projects Limited 
(CIN: L45201MH1995PLC167630) 
B-3/204, Saket Complex  
Thane (West), Thane (M.H.)  
 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by KCL Infra Projects Limited(CIN:L45201MH1995PLC167630)(hereinafter called ‘the 
Company’), subject to noted limitation of physical interaction and verification of records caused due to the COVID-19 
Pandemic lockdown. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating 
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
Management’s Responsibility: 
The Management of the Company is completely responsible for preparation and maintenance of Secretarial records 
and for developing proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, rules and regulations. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility: 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by the 
Company with respect to secretarial compliances, on the basis of verification done by us on test basis.  
 
We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to the best of our understanding to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on the 
test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we 
followed, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
Wherever required we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of the laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events, etc. 
 
Our report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness or accuracy 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 
 
Based on the information and/or details received on verification  of  the  Company’s  books,  papers,  minute  books,  
forms  and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report 
that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2021, 
generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed (within / beyond the due date) and other 
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021, according to the provisions of: 

1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

2) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and rule made there under.  

3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
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4) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;(Not applicable to 
the Company during the audit period) 

5) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI Act’): 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 and 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2009. (Not applicable to the Company during Audit Period) 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities And Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employees Benefits) Regulations 2014.(Not applicable to the Company during Audit Period) 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008. (Not 
applicable to the Company during Audit Period) 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client. (Not applicable as the Company 
is not registered as a Registrar to an Issue or Share Transfer Agent). 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009. (Not applicable 
to the Company during Audit Period) 

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations, 2009. (Not applicable to the 
Company during Audit Period) 

 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 
i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited and Metropolitan Stock 
Exchange. 

 
6) As per the Information given by the Management, other laws which are applicable to the Company are: 

 
 General Clause Act, 1897 
 Registration Act, 1908 
 Indian Stamp Act, 1899 
 Limitation Act, 1963 
 Transfer of Property Act, 1882 
 The Indian Contract Act, 1872 
 Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881 
 Sale of Goods Act, 1930 
 Information Technology Act, 2000 
 Consumer Protection Act, 1986 
 Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 
 Employee Provident Fund (EPF) & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 
 The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 
 The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 
 Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 
 The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 
 The Income Tax Act, 1961 
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 Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 
 Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 
 Trade Union Act, 1926 
 Housing Board Act, 1965 
 Building and Other Construction Workers (Regulation of Employment and Conditions of Services) 

Act, 1996 
 Other laws as applicable to the Company 

We further report that the compliances of applicable financial and tax laws has not been reviewed in this audit since 
the same have been subject to review by Statutory Auditor and Internal Auditor of the Company and other designated 
professionals.  
During the period under review, the company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., which are applicable on the company, subject to the following observations- 

(a)  As per the information received from the Management, due to COVID 19 pandemic and the Registered Office of the Company 
being in Red Zone, there were some delays in uploading of information / Intimation to SEBI and Stock Exchange in some cases 
which was later waived off by the Exchange  
 

     We further report that based on the information, representation and reports provided by the Company, its 
Board of Directors, its designated Officers, and authorized representatives during the conduct of audit, in 
our opinion, adequate systems and processes and control mechanism exist in the Company to monitor and 
ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events etc. to the 
Company and that the compliance of other laws as listed in Point No. 6 above are based on Management 
Certification.  

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There were changes in the composition of Board of 
Directors during the year under review. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes. 
 
We further report that there is scope to improve the systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines. 
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We further report that during the period under review, none of the events has taken place: 

(i) Public / Right / Preferential issue of shares / debentures / sweat equity, etc. 
(ii) Redemption / buy-back of securities 
(iii) Merger / Amalgamation / reconstruction, etc. 
(iv)  Foreign technical collaborations. 

 
                                                                                    For Vishakha Agrawal & Associates 

                                                                                                                         Practicing Company Secretaries                                                                                     
  

 

 
Date: 03.09.2021                                             CS Vishakha Agrawal 
Place: Indore                                  CP:15088, ACS:39298 
                              UDIN: A039298C000890225 
 
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as AnnexureA and forms an integral part of this 
report. 
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Annexure ‘A’ 
 

 
To, 
The Members, 
KCL Infra Projects Limited 
(CIN: L45201MH1995PLC167630) 
B-3/204, Saket Complex  
Thane (West), Thane (M.H.)  
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 

2. We  have  followed  the  audit  practices  and  processes  as  were  appropriate  to  obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to 
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we 
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
company. 
 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about  the compliance of laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

   
 

 For Vishakha Agrawal & Associates 
 Practicing Company Secretaries 

 

 
Date: 03.09.2021                        CS Vishakha Agrawal 
Place: Indore                          CP: 15088, ACS: 39298 
                         UDIN: A039298C000890225 
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Annexure - 4 

Policy on Nomination and Remuneration 

   Introduction: 

The Nomination & Remuneration Policy (“Policy”) of KCL Infra Projects Limited (“KCL” or “Company”) is 
formulated under the provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and under regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time. (“Listing Regulations”). 

The policy is intended to set out the criteria to pay remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), Directors 
and other Senior Management officials and other employees of the company on a fair and equitable basis without any 
discrimination on any grounds and to harmonise and sync the aspirations of Human Resources with the goals of the 
Company. 

Objective and Purpose: 

The objectives and purpose of this Policy are: 

i. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, competencies, positive attributes and independence for 
appointment of a director (executive/non-executive/ independent) of the Company; 

ii. To recommend policy relating to the remuneration of the Directors, KMP and Senior Management to the Board of 
Directors of the Company (“Board”). 

iii. To lay down the policies and procedures for the annual performance evaluation of the directors individually 
(including executive/non-executive/independent) and also of the Board of Directors as a whole and also 
including committees. 

Definition: 

a. 'Board' means Board of Directors of the Company. 

b. 'Directors' means directors of the Company. 

c. 'Committee' means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted or reconstituted by 
the Board, in accordance with the Act and applicable Listing Regulations. 

d. 'Company' means KCL infra Projects Limited. 

e. 'Independent Director' means a Director referred to in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 
framed there under. 

f. 'Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)' means 

i) the Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer or manager 

ii) Whole-time Director 

iii) the Company Secretary; 

iv) the Chief Financial Officer; and 

v) Any other person as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 from time to time 

g. Senior Management means officers/personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team. 
The core management team includes Chief Executive Officer, Managing Director, Chief Operating Officer & 
Whole-time Director, Presidents, Group General Counsel, Head-HRD, Chief Financial Officer and Company 
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Secretary. 

h. 'Remuneration' means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him 
and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961. 

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this Policy and not defined herein but defined in the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning respectively 
assigned to them therein. 

Constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Board has re-constituted the “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” of the Board on February 14,2020. This 
is in line with the requirements under the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). 

This Policy and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Charter are integral to the functioning of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and are to be read together. The Board has authority to reconstitute this 
Committee from time to time. 

 
 

Composition of Committee meeting held on 14th February, 2020: 

 

S.
No
. 

Name of Director Category Designation 

1. Ms. Sunita Vora Non Executive Independent Director          Chairman 

2. Mr. Archit Yadav Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

3. Mr. Moeenuddin Makrani Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

 

Matters to be dealt with by the Committee 

The following matters shall be dealt with by the committee: 

  To periodically reviewing the size and composition of the Board to have an appropriate mix of executive and 
independent Directors to maintain its independence and separate its functions of governance and management 
and to ensure that it is structured to make appropriate decisions, with a variety of perspectives and skills, in the 
best interests of the Company; 

  To formulate the criteria determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and 
recommend candidates to the Board when circumstances warrant the appointment of a new Director, having 
regard to qualifications, integrity, expertise and experience for the position. 

  Establishing and reviewing Board KMP and Senior Management succession plans in order to ensure and 
maintain an appropriate balance of skills, experience and expertise on the Board and Senior Management. 

  Evaluation of  performance: 

(i) Make recommendations to the Board on appropriate performance criteria for the Directors. 

(ii) Formulate the criteria and framework for evaluation of performance of every Director on the Board of the 
Company or engage with a third party facilitator in doing so. 

(iii) Identify ongoing training and education programs for the Board to ensure that Non-Executive Directors are 
provided with adequate information regarding the business, the industry and their legal responsibilities and 
duties. Meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
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  The nomination and remuneration committee shall meet at least once in a financial year. 
  The quorum for the meeting shall be either two members or one third of the members of the committee, whichever 

is greater, including at least one independent director. 
         Policy for appointment and removal of Directors, KMP and Senior Management 

  The Committee shall ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person 
identified for appointment as Director, KMP or Senior Management and recommend to the Board his/her 
appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience 
possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the position. 

  A person to be appointed as Director, KMP or Senior Management should possess adequate qualification, 
expertise and experience for the position he / she is considered for. 

  A person, to be appointed as Director, should possess impeccable reputation for integrity, deep expertise and 
insights in sectors / areas relevant to the Company, ability to contribute to the Company's growth and 
complementary skills in relation to the other Board members. 

  The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing Director / executive 
Director who has attained the age of sixty years and shall not appoint Independent Director who has attained 
the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended at the 
discretion of the committee beyond the age of sixty years/seventy years with the approval of shareholders by 
passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating 
the justification for extension of appointment beyond sixty years/seventy years as the case may be. 

  A whole-time KMP of the Company shall not hold office in more than one company except in its subsidiary 
company at the same time. However, a whole-time KMP can be appointed as a Director in any company, with the 
permission of the Board of Directors of the Company. 

Term / Tenure 

  Managing Director / Whole-time Director: The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its 
Managing Director and CEO or Whole-time Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re- 
appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term. 

  Independent Director: An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the 
Board of the Company and will be eligible for re- appointment on passing of a special resolution by the 
Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report. No Independent Director shall hold office 
for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after 
expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall 
not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other 
capacity, either directly or indirectly. At the time of appointment of Independent Director, it should be ensured 
that number of Boards on which such Independent Director serves, is restricted to applicable regulations in 
force. 

Removal 

  Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made there under or under 
any other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons 
recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management subject to the provisions and 
compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations. 

Retirement 

  The Directors, KMP and Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Directors, 
KMP and Senior Management in the same position / remuneration or otherwise, even after attaining the 
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retirement age, for the benefit of the Company. Policy relating to the remuneration for Directors, KMP and 
Senior Management. 

Remuneration to Independent Directors: 

  Independent Directors may receive remuneration by way of 
• Sitting fees for participation in the Board and other meetings; 
• Reimbursement of expenses for participation in the Board and other meetings; 
• Commission as approved by the Shareholders of the Company. 

  Independent Directors shall not be entitled to any stock options. Based on the recommendation of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board may decide the sitting fee payable to Independent 
Directors, but the amount of such sitting fees shall not exceed the maximum permissible under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

Remuneration to Directors in other capacity: 

The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to be paid to Directors will be determined by the 
Committee and recommended to the Board for approval. 

  The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Managing Director/Whole-time Director shall be in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made there under. 

  Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure may be recommended by the Committee to the 
Board which should be within the limits approved by the Shareholders in the case of Managing Director/ 
Whole-time Director. 

  Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Directors, KMP and Senior Management for 
indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the 
remuneration payable to any such personnel. Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium 
paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the remuneration. 

Remuneration to other employees: 

  Apart from the Directors, KMPs and Senior Management, the remuneration for rest of the employees is 
determined on the basis of the role and position of the individual employee including professional 
experience, responsibility, job complexity and local market conditions. 

The Company considers it essential to incentivize the workforce to ensure adequate and reasonable 
compensation to the staff. The Key Managerial Personnel/s shall ensure that the level of remuneration 
motivates and rewards high performers who perform according to set expectations for the individual in 
question. 

  The various remuneration components, basic salary, allowances, perquisites etc. may be combined to ensure an 
appropriate and balanced remuneration package. 

  The annual increments to the remuneration paid to the employees shall be determined based on the annual 
appraisal carried out by the HODs of various departments. Decisions on Annual Increments shall be made on 
the basis of this annual appraisal. 

  Minimum remuneration to Whole-time Directors If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its 
profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration to its Whole-time Directors in accordance with 
the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

Remuneration to KMPs and Senior Management: 

  Remuneration to KMP and Senior Management The pay program for KMP and Senior Management has been 
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designed around three primary pay components: Base/Fixed Pay, Performance Bonus and Stock Incentives. 
These three components together constitute the “Total Rewards” of the KMP and Senior Management. 

Policy Review 

  This Policy is framed based on the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules there under and the 
requirements of Listing Regulations with the Stock Exchanges. 

  In case of any subsequent changes in the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or any other regulations 
which makes any of the provisions in the policy inconsistent with the Act or regulations, then the provisions 
of the Act or regulations would prevail over the policy and the provisions in the policy would be modified in 
due course to make it consistent with law. 

  This policy shall be reviewed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as and when any changes are 
to be incorporated in the policy due to change in regulations or as may be felt appropriate by the Committee. 
Any changes or modification to the policy as recommended by the Committee would be placed before the 
Board of Directors for their approval. 

 

Information Pursuant To Section 197(12) Of the Companies Act, 2013 Read With 

Rule 5 (1) Of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

(1) Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the 

financial year ended 31st March, 2021 : 
 
 

Name of the Directors Ratio of Director's Remuneration to the median 
remuneration of the employees of the Company for the 
Financial Year 

Mohan Jhawar* Nil 

 * Mr. Mohan Jhawar (Chairman cum Managing Director) took a major step in the initial phase of   this 
COVID-19 pandemic for maintaining financial sustainability of the company and he has relinquished his 
salary for the year. 

 

(2) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary or 
Manager, if any, in the financial year : 

 

Name of the Directors/KMP Percentage increase in Remuneration in the Financial 
Year 

Mohan Jhawar 00.0 % 

Sunny Khande 00.0 % 

Shruti Sikarwar 00.0 % 
  

(3) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company as on March 31st 2021 is 14 

(4) Average percentile increase/decrease already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase/decrease in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the 
managerial remuneration : 
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Average decrease in Managerial Remuneration for the financial year 2020-21 is 100%. The average decrease in 
Managerial Remuneration was due to the COVID-19 issue as the Managing Director of the Company 
voluntarily relinquished salary of the year so as to maintain financial sustainability in the company and for the 
sake of employees as well as compared to the previous year. 

 Salary has been taken as actual to make the figures comparable. 

(5) There is no variable component of remuneration which was availed by company to directors. 

(6) Remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
– 
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Annexure - 5 
 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Industry Structure and Developments 

Infrastructure Industry has always been the backbone of any country and is vital to a country's economic development 
and prosperity. This industry stands third among the 14 major sectors in terms of direct, indirect and induced effects 
in all sectors of the economy. There has been an allocation of 2. .3  Lakh Crores in the union budget 2021 towards the 
infrastructure sector of the country including railways, roads, bridges, developing blue economy, etc. Not just this, but 
also certain major reliefs have been awarded by the government to the public in the form tax exemptions. 

As India is developing country, with a rapidly growing urban population, the problems relating to vehicle parking 
have become common these days and the number of vehicles is also increasing daily adding to the parking vows at 
public places. The traffic on roads and parking space has been an area of concern in majority of the Indian cities. Multi-
level car parking system (MLCPS) is one such technology which has been implemented in India and is the core 
operational area for KCL Infra Projects Limited. It is used for optimum utilization of parking space by utilizing vertical 
space rather than horizontal space. 

In automated multilevel car parking, the car is lifted and placed at the available slot. This is done with the help of 
robotics and a lot of software programming. Some of the benefits of MLCPS are optimum utilization of space, low 
construction cost, low working and maintenance cost to name a few. 

Opportunities 

Mechanized car parking systems are in itself something unique and interesting that has been introduced and 
implemented in India, but there is always a scope for improvement. New technologies can be implemented in order to 
boost the current scenario viz. Smart parking can be one of the options which uses sensors, wireless communication 
technology, data analytics etc. to solve parking issues. 

Smart parking solutions can be used to locate available parking space with the help of sensors. This saves customer's 
time as well as minimizes wastage of fuel. Various technologies are being used to ease parking problems in public 
places. 

Not just the technologies, but government of India is also giving huge impetus for the development of this sector 
through focused policies such as open FDI Norms, large budget allocation to infrastructure sectors, smart city 
missions, RERA etc. can be seen as major opportunities in this sector. 

Threats 

Opportunities are many, but at the same time the threats can- not be overlooked. The first and the foremost is the 
risk associated with the tender allocation process as the construction and infrastructure sector in India is largely 
dominated by a large number of small players. The lack of co-ordination in various government authorities also 
causes delay in the execution and implementation of the projects. Huge cost involvement and difficulty in raising 
funds are some of the major threats. 

Risk and concerns 

Risk is an inherent part of any business, and so is the case with this industry too. There are various risks associated 
while undertaking any construction projects which have to be mitigated and taken due care of. The first is the 
contractual risk, shortage of skilled labour, availability and inducement of funds as and when required, regulatory 
amendments, cost volatility, competitive intensity, etc. 

Not just the mere existence of risk but their identification, analysis and mitigation in an effective manner is the 
major area of concern for the company and for this the company has a risk management committee in place and also 
a policy to manage the risks encountered or the potential ones in a planned way. 
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The company's internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its business and the size and 
complexity of its operations. These are routinely tested and certified by statutory as well as internal auditors and 
cover all offices, factories and key business areas. Significant audit observations and follow up actions thereon are 
reported to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's 
internal control environment and monitors the implementation of audit recommendations, including those relating 
to strengthening of the company's risk management policies and systems. 

Outlook 

The company's approach is more focused towards constant and rapid upgradation of the infrastructure and 
development of more and more mechanized car parking projects particularly in the smart cities of India. 

Also the Central government has announced massive spending on infrastructure in its budget for 2021, hence your 
company is looking forward to encash the immense opportunities available in this sector and to increase the 
shareholder's value. 

Internal Control Mechanism 

The company has adequate internal control systems in place, commensurate with its size and nature of operations. 
The Internal auditor, inter-alia, covers all significant areas of the company's operations and submits the report to the 
Audit Committee for their review. 

Internal control procedures at KCL Infra projects Limited are designed to ensure that all assets and resources are 
acquired economically, used efficiently and protected adequately and all internal policies and statutory guidelines 
are complied in letter and spirit. 

The company's Audit Committee, the composition and functioning of which is in accordance with the provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013 as well as Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 
2015, further strengthens the robustness of its internal control mechanism. 

Human resource Development 

Your Company recognizes human assets as a primary source of its growth & competitiveness. Company's HR 
practices, systems and people development initiatives are focused on deployment and scouting for the “Best Fit” 
talent for all key roles. Pay for performance, reward and recognition programmes, job enrichment and lateral 
movements provide opportunity for growth & development of the talent pool. 

The Company has been working towards institutionalizing a performance-oriented culture. The entire HR system 
including recruitment, performance management system, reward and recognition has been aligned with the business 
objectives. Key management personnel at the project sites are being evaluated on uniform parameters linked to 
organisational priorities. Similarly, key personnel at the corporate office have been given organisation target in 
addition to their functional objectives. The Company also has association with various professionals who work in 
association and co-ordination with the employees of the Company. 

Cautionary Statements 
The above Management Discussion and Analysis contains certain forward looking statements within the meaning of 
applicable security laws and regulations. These pertain to the Company's future business prospects and business 
profitability, which are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties and the actual results could materially differ 
from those in such forward looking statements. The risks and uncertainties relating to these statements include, but 
are not limited to, risks and uncertainties, regarding fluctuations in earnings, our ability to manage growth, 
competition, economic growth in India, ability to attract and retain highly skilled professionals, time and cost over 
runs on contracts, government policies and actions with respect to investments, fiscal deficits, regulation, etc. In 
accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance approved by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 
shareholders and readers are cautioned that in the case of data and information external to the Company, no 
representation is made on its accuracy or comprehensiveness though the same are based on sources thought to be 



53 

 

reliable. The Company does not undertake to make any announcement in case any of these forward looking statements 
become materially incorrect in future or update any forward looking statements made from time to time on behalf of 
the Company. 
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Annexure - 6 
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

In accordance with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 
2015 and some of the best practices followed internationally on Corporate Governance, the report 
containing the details of corporate governance systems and processes at KCL Infra Projects Limited is as 
under:- 

1. INTRODUCTION: 

Corporate Governance is about working ethically and finding a balance between economic and social goals. 
It includes the ability to function profitably and simultaneously obeying laws, rules and regulations. 
Corporate Governance is about maximizing shareholder value legally, ethically and on a sustainable basis 
while ensuring fairness to every shareholder, Company's clients, employees, investors, vendor partners, 
government of the land and the community. Thus corporate governance is the reflection of Company's 
culture, policies and its relationship with the stakeholders and its commitment to values. 

2. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE: 

KCL Infra Projects Limited looks upon good Corporate Governance practices as a key driver of sustainable 
corporate growth and long-term stakeholder value creation. It is the application of best management 
practices, compliance of laws & adherence to ethical standards to achieve the Company's objective of 
enhancing stakeholders' value and discharge of social responsibility. Good Corporate Governance Practices 
enable a Company to attract high quality financial and human capital. In turn these resources are leveraged 
to maximize long-term stakeholder value while preserving the interest of multiple stakeholders including 
the society at large. In the conduct of your Company's business and its dealings, it abides by the principle of 
honesty, openness and doing what is right which means taking business decisions and acting in way that is 
ethical and is in compliances with the applicable legislation. The Company's corporate governance 
philosophy has been further strengthened through the KCL Infra Projects Ltd. Code of Conduct for Board 
and Senior personnel and policy on Insider trading. 

3. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

The Board of Directors is entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of the management, general affairs, 
direction and performance of the Company and has been vested with requisite powers, authorities and 
duties. The Board of Directors of the Company is headed by Mr. Mohan Jhawar, Chairman cum Managing 
Director. 

A. COMPOSITION: 

The Company's policy is to maintain optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors and 
Independent Directors as required under applicable legislation. As on date of this Report, Your Company’s 
Board comprises of Six Directors, out of them three are Non-Executive Independent Directors,  One is a  
Non-Executive  Director,  one is a Professional Executive Director, one is Promoter Executive Director. The 
Executive Directors includes Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer. The composition of the Board 
is in conformity with the requirements of Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation 2015. Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under 
Regulation 16(1)(b)of the SEBI (Listing Obligation And Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015,The 
maximum tenure of the Independent Directors is in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). All 
the Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria as mentioned under Regulation 16 
and Section 149(6) of the Act. 
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None of the Director on the Board is member of more than ten committees or the Chairman of more than 
five committees( committees being Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee), as per 
requirements of Regulation 26(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulation, 
2015,across all the public limited companies in which he/she is a Director. 

 

B. BOARD MEETINGS: 

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company/business policy and strategy apart 
from other Board businesses. The Board / Committee Meetings are pre-scheduled and a tentative annual 
calendar of the Board and Committee Meetings is circulated to the Directors well in advance to facilitate 
them to plan their schedule and to ensure meaningful participation in the meetings. During the Financial 
Year ended 31st March, 2021, Four Board meetings were held respectively on below mentioned dates: 

 July 31,2020 

 September 02,2020 

 September 15,2020 

 November 06,2020 

 February 12,2021 

The maximum interval between any two meetings was well within the maximum allowed gap of 120 days. 
The notice of Board meeting along with agenda was given well in advance to all the Directors. The meetings 
of the Board are held either at the registered office of the Company at Thane or at the Corporate Office of the 
Company at Indore. 

The names and categories of the directors on the board, their attendance at board meetings held during the 
year and the number of directorships and committee chairmanships / memberships held by them in other 
public companies as on March 31st,2021 are given herein above. Other directorships do not include 
directorships of private limited companies, Section 8 companies and of companies incorporated outside 
India. Chairmanships/ memberships of board committees shall include only Audit Committee, Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders' Relationship Committee, Risk Management Committee & the 
Management Committee. 

C. SEPARATE MEETING OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

According to the provisions of Regulation 25(2) of SEBI (Listing Obl igation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation 2015, the Independent Directors of the Company shall hold at least one meeting 
in a year, without the attendance of non-Independent Directors and members of the management. All the 
Independent Directors of the Company shall strive to be present at such meeting. The Independent 
Directors met one time during the Financial Year ended 31st  March, 2021 on February 12,2021 and inter 
alia discussed the following:- 

1. Reviewing the performance of non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 
2. Reviewing the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of 

executive directors and non-executive directors; 
3. Assessing the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company 

management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their 
duties. 

D. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENTDIRECTORS 

In Compliance of SEBI (Listing Obligation And Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015 Company has 
conducted a familiarization programme for Independent Directors of the Company for familiarizing 
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with their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company 
operates, business model of the Company, etc. The details of such familiarization programmes for 
Independent Directors are posted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at 
www.kclinfra.com. 

E. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have been 
constituted to deal with specific areas/activities which concern the Company and need a closer review. 
The Board Committees are setup under the formal approval of the Board to carry out clearly defined 
roles which are considered to be performed by members of the Board, as a part of good governance 
practice. The Board supervises the execution of its responsibilities by the Committees and is responsible 
for their action. The minutes of the meetings of all Committees are placed before the Board for review. 
The Board Committees can request special invites to join the meeting, as appropriate. The Board has 
currently established the following statutory and non-statutory Committees. 

F. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

Company has constituted the qualified Audit Committee of the Company pursuant to the provision 
of Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligation And Disclosure Requirements) Regulation2015.TheAudit 
Committee acts as a link between the Management, the Statutory and Internal Auditors and the Board of 
Directors; and oversees the financial reporting process. It interacts with statutory, internal auditors and 
reviews and recommends their appointment and remuneration. The Audit Committee is provided with 
necessary assistance and information so as to enable it to carry out its function effectively. 

i. Composition of Audit Committee 

The Committee's composition meets with requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligation And Disclosure Requirements) Regulation2015. All the 
members of the Committee have relevant experience in financial matters.  

 

S. 
No. 

Name of Director Category Designation 

1.  Mr. Archit Yadav  Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Chairman 

2. Ms. Sunita Vora Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Member 

3. Mr. Mohan Jhawar Managing Director Member 

4. Mr. Moeenuddin    Makrani Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Member 

 

ii. Meeting of Audit Committee 
During the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021, Four Audit Committee Meetings were held as below: 

 July 31,2020 

 September 02,2020 

 September 15,2020 

 November 06,2020 

 February 12,2021 
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        The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. 

iii. Powers of Audit Committee 

The power of audit committee shall include the following:- 

1. Investigating any activity within its terms of reference; 

2. Seeking information from any employee; 

3. Obtaining outside legal or other professional advice; 

4. Securing attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary; and 

5. Any other matter as may be required from time to time by the Listing Agreement, Companies Act, 2013 
and rules made there under and any other statutory, contractual or other regulatory requirements to be 
attended to by such committee. 

iv. Role of Audit Committee 

The role of audit committee shall include the following:- 

1. Overseeing the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 
ensure that the Financial Statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

2. Recommending to the board for appointment (including re-appointment and replacement), remuneration 
and terms of appointment of auditor of the Company; 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors; 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual Financial Statements and auditor's report thereon before 
submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:- 
a. Matters required being included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's 

report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same 

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management 

d. Significant adjustments made in the Financial Statements arising out of audit findings 

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to Financial Statements 
f. Disclosure of any related party transactions 

g. Qualifications in the draft audit report. 

5. Reviewing with management, the quarterly Financial Statements before submission for board for 
approval; 

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of  uses/ application of funds raised through an issue 
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 
those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency 
monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate 
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter; 

7. Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties; 

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;  
10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and Risk Management systems; 

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of the 
internal control systems; 

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 
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department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage 
and frequency of internal audit; 

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting 
the matter to the board; 

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

18. Reviewing the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism in case same is existing; 
19. Overseeing the performance of Company's Risk Management Policy; 

20. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the 
finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and 
background, etc. of the candidate; 

21. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. 

22. Any other function as may be required from time to time by the Listing Regulation, Companies Act, 2013 
and rules made there under and any other statutory, contractual or other regulatory requirements to be 
attended to by such committee. 

v. Information to be reviewed by Audit Committee: 

The audit committee shall review the following: 

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 

2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by 
management; 

3. Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 

4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; 

5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of  the Chief internal auditor; and 

6. Any other matter as may be required from time to time by the Listing Regulation, Companies Act, 2013 
and rules made there under and any other statutory, contractual or other regulatory requirements to be 
attended to by such committee. 

 
II. N O M I N A T I O N  A N D R E M U N E R A T I O N  COMMITTEE: 

Company has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company pursuant to 
the provisions of Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015 
and pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with The Companies (Meetings of Board and 
its Powers) Rules2014. 

i. Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Committee's composition meets with requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
provisions of Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligation And Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 
2015. All the members of the Committee have relevant experience in financial matters. 

Composition of Committee meeting held on 14th February, 2020: 
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S.
No
. 

Name of Director Category Designation 

1. Ms. Sunita Vora Non-Executive Independent Director Chairman 

2. Mr. Archit Yadav Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

3. Mr. Moeenuddin Makran Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

 

i. Meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

During the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021, Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting 
were held on February 12,2021. The necessary quorum was present at the meeting. 

ii. Role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall include the following:- 

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees; 

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board; 

3. Devising a policy on Board diversity; 

4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed as senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board for their 
appointment and removal. 

5. Any other function as may be required from time to time by the Listing Regulation, Companies Act, 
2013 and rules made there under and any other statutory, contractual or other regulatory requirements 
to be attended by such committee. 

iii. Remuneration Policy: 

The Company has adopted the Policy for Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) 
and other Employees of the Company The detailed policy is uploaded on the website of the Company 
and can be accessed at www.kclinfra.com and annexed as Annexure III in the Annual Report. 

iv. Remuneration of Directors: 

Remuneration of Executive Directors is decided by the Board, based on the recommendations of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee as per the remuneration policy of the Company, within the 
ceilings fixed by the shareholders. 

 

Particulars Mohan Jhawar* 

Salary 0.00 

Mr. Mohan Jhawar (Chairman cum Managing Director) took a major step in the initial phase of this COVID-19 
pandemic for maintaining financial sustainability of the company and has relinquished his salary for the year 
2020-21 

v. Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors: During the year ended 31st March, 2021, the Company has not 
paid any remuneration either in the form of commission or sitting fee to its non-executive Directors. 

III. STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

The Company had a shareholders / investors grievance Committee of directors look into the redressal of 
complaints of investors such as transfer or credit of shares, non-receipt of dividend/ notices/ Annual 
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Reports, etc. the nomenclature of the said Committee was changed to Stakeholders’ relationship Committee 
in the light of provisions of the Act and Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligation And Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation 2015.  

i. Composition of Stakeholders' Relationship Committee 

The composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is given below:  

 

S.No
. 

Name of Director Category Designat
ion 

1. Mr. Archit Yadav  Non-Executive Independent Director Chairman 
2. Ms. Sunita Vora Non-Executive Independent Director Member 
3. Mr. Mohan Jhawar Managing Director Member 

4. Mr. Moeenuddin    Makrani Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

 
ii. Meeting of Stakeholder Relationship Committee 

During the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021 no investor complaints were received and no complaint 
was pending for redressal. The Stakeholder Relationship Committee Meeting was held on February 12,2021. 
The necessary quorum was present for the meeting of Stakeholder Relationship Committee during the 
Financial Year under review. 

iii. Role of Stakeholder Relationship Committee 

The roles of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee shall includes all the function/s as may be required 
from time to time by the SEBI (Listing Obligation And Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015, 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and any other statutory, contractual or other regulatory 
requirements by such committee. 

a. The Committee meets regularly for redressing shareholders'/investors' complaints like non-receipt of 
Balance Sheet transfer of shares, etc. The Committee oversees the performance of the Registrar and 
Transfer Agents and recommends measures for overall improvement in the quality of investor services. 
The Board of Directors has delegated power for approving transfer of securities to Directors. The 
Committee focuses primarily on strengthening investor relations and ensuring rapid resolution of any 
shareholder or investor concerns. The Committee also monitors implementation and compliance of the 
Company's code of conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading in pursuance of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 2015. 

b. The Company addresses all complaints, suggestions and grievances expeditiously and replies have been 
sent/issues resolved usually within 15days, except in case of dispute over facts or other legal constraints. 

c. The Shareholders' / Investors' Grievance Committee reviews the complaints received and action taken. 

d. No requests for share transfers are pending except those that are disputed or sub-judice. 

 

IV. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

The Company had a Risk Management Committee of directors for framing, implementing and monitoring 
the Risk Management plan for the Company and such other functions as it may deem fit. 

i. Composition of Risk Management Committee 
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S.No
. 

Name of Director Category Designation 

1. Mr. Mohan Jhawar Managing Director Chairman 
2. Ms. Sunita Vora Non-Executive Independent Director Member 
3. Mr. Archit Yadav* Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

4. Mr. Moeenuddin    Makrani Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

 
ii. Meeting of Risk Management Committee 

During the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021, one meeting was held of Risk Management Committee 
on February 12,2021. 

iii. Role of Risk Management Committee 
The role of Risk Management Committees hall includes all functions as may be required from time to time 
by the SEBI (Listing Obligation And Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, Companies Act, 
2013 and rules made there under and any other statutory, contractual or other regulatory requirements to 
be attended to by such committee. 

V. MANAGEMENTCOMMITTEE:- 
The committee acts for safeguarding the company and the stakeholders' interest. 

i. Meeting of Management Committee 
During the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021. During the year under review, one meeting of the 
Management committee was held on February 12,2021 

 

S.No
. 

Name of Director Category Designatio
n 

1. Mr. Mohan Jhawar Managing Director Chairman 

2. Ms. Sunita Vora Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

3. Mr. Archit Yadav Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

4. Mr. Moeenuddin    Makrani Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

  
 Investor Correspondence (Details of Compliance Officer): 

For any assistance regarding dematerialization of share transfer, transmissions, change of address or any 
query relating to shares of company please write to:- 

Company Secretary & Compliance officer 

KCL Infra Projects Limited “KCL Business Park, 3rd floor, 46-47 PU-4, Commercial Behind C-21 Mall A.B. 
Road Indore (M.P.)- 452010 E-Mail Id exclusively for Investor's Grievances:cs@kclinfra.com. 

4. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 

i. Annual General  Meetings:- 
The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company were held at the venue and time as under:- 

 
 
YEAR 

 
AGM 
No. 

 
DATE 

 
TIME 

 
VENUE 

SPECIAL 
RESOLUTIO
N PASSED 
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2019-20 

  
  25th  

  
  30.09.2020 

    
  11.00 AM 

 
Video Conferencing/ Other Audio 
Visual Mode 

 
            Yes* 
  

 
 
2018-19 

 
 

24th 

 
 

30.09.2019 

 
 
 11.00 AM 

Gloria Business Center, 301, Dev 
Corpora, Opp. Cadbury, Pokhran 
Road no.1, Khopat, Thane(W), 
Thane, Maharashtra 400602 

 
 

Yes* 

 
 
2017-18 

 
 

23rd 

 
 

29.09.2018 

 
 
12.00 PM 

MBC Infotech Park, 
MBC Compound, Sainath Nagar, 
Kasarwadawali, Ghodbunder Road, 
Thane, Maharashtra - 400615 

 
 

Yes* 

       *The Company in its AGM held in previous years has passed the following special resolutions:- 
 
In the year 2019-20 
Increase the FII investment limit under Portfolio Investment Scheme. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of clause (b) of sub-section 3 of section 6 and section 47 of the Foreign   
Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) read with Foreign Exchange Management  (Transfer  or  Issue of 
a  Security  by  a  Person  resident  Outside India) Regulations, 2017 issued vide  Notification No. FEMA 
20(R)/2017-RB dated  November  7,  2017 or any other applicable law, and subject to the Statutory 
approval, if required, the consent of the company be and is hereby accorded for the investment by Foreign 
Institutional Investors (FII) in the equity share capital of the Company, either by direct investment or by 
purchase or otherwise by acquiring from the market under portfolio investment scheme on repatriation 
basis, up to limits as decided by the Board of Directors of the company within the limits as provided by 
regulatory authorities. 

 
In the year 2018-19 
Re-appointment of Mr. Mohan Jhawar (DIN: 00495473), as Managing Director of the company for a period of 
3 (Three) consecutive years, commencing from 1st October, 2019 till 30th September, 2022. 
Re-appointment of Mrs. Sunita Vora (DIN: 06486614), as Independent Director of the company for a period of 
4 (Four) consecutive years, commencing from 1st October, 2019 till 30th September, 2023. 
 
In the year 2017-18 
Enhancements of limits for borrow money in terms of section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Enhancements of limits for loans and investments by the company in terms of section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

 

5. OTHER DISCLOSURES: 

a. There are no materially significant transactions with its promoters, the directors or the senior management 
personnel, their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the interests of the 
Company. The disclosure in respect of related party transactions is provided in the notes on accounts. All 
contracts with the related parties entered into during the year are in normal course of business and have no 
potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large and are carried out on arm's length basis at fair 
market value. 

b. Neither was any penalties imposed, nor were any strictures passed by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any 
statutory authority on any capital market related matters during the last three years. 

c. The Company believes in the conduct of the affairs of its constituents in a fair and transparent manner by 
adopting highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior. Towards this end, 
the Company has framed a Whistleblower Policy. No personnel have been denied access to the Audit 
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Committee. The detail Whistleblower policy has been u p l o a d e d  on the  C o m p a n y ' s  
w e b s i t e : http://www.kclinfra.com/pdf/VigilMechanismorWhistleBlowerPolicy_KCLIPL.pdf 

d. The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulation. The Company has 
adopted various non-mandatory requirements as well, as discussed under relevant headings. 

e. The Company does not have any subsidiary company. 
f. All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 

(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, during the financial year were in the 
ordinary course of business and on an arm's length pricing basis and do not attract the provisions of 
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. There were no materially significant transactions with related 
parties during the financial year, which were in conflict with the interest of the Company. Suitable 
disclosure as required by the Accounting Standards (AS18) has been made in the notes to the Financial 
Statements. 

       The company has framed Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on Dealing with Related 
Party Transactions and is placed on the Company's website and the web link for the same is 
www.kclinfra.com. 

g The Company has also formed Related Party Transactions Policy and the web link for same 
ishttp://www.kclinfra.com/pdf/PolicyonRelatedPartyTransactions_KCLIPL.pdf 

h. The Company has in place mechanism to inform Board Members about the Risk Management and 
minimization procedures and periodical reviews to ensure that risk is controlled by the executive 
management. A detailed note on risk management is given in the financial review section of the 
management discussion and analysis report elsewhere in this report. Further the company did not engage 
in commodity hedging activities. 

i. The company has fully complied with the applicable requirement specified in reg.17 to 27 and clause(b)to(i) 
of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations,2015. 

j. Means of Communication: 

  The website of the company www.kclinfra.com acts as primary source of information regarding the 
operations of the company quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results and other media releases are 
being displayed on the company's website. 

  Quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results approved by the board of directors are submitted to the 
stock exchange in terms of the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing obligations & disclosure 
requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are published in the following newspapers namely, Financial Express 
(English) and Mumbai Local Newspaper. 

k. Payment of Listing Fees: 

Annual listing fee for the year 2020-21 has been paid by the Company to the Stock Exchanges where the 
shares of the Company are traded. 

6. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERINFORMATION: 
 

I Annual General Meeting: 26th Annual General Meeting of the 
members of KCL INFRA PROJECTS 
LIMITED 
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 Day, 
Date, 
Time 

Thursday 
30th September 2021s, 
11:00 AM 

 Venue Video Conferencing Other Audio Visual Mode: 

 

Topic: 25th Annual General Meeting 

Time: Sep 30, 2021 11:00 AM India 

 

 
 
 

II 

 
 

Financial Year 

1st April 2021 - 31st March 2022 Financial Calendar 
(Tentatively) for Quarterly Results 

Q1 (30.06.2021) - on or before September 14th , 
2021 

Q2 (30.09.2021) - on or before November 14th, 
2021  

Q3 (31.12.2021) - on or before February 14th, 
2022 

Q4 (31.03.2022) - on or before May 30th, 2022 
(Subject to extension of dates provided by SEBI from time to time) 

III Date of Book Closure 23rd September 2021 to 30th September 2021 

IV Dividend Payment Date No Dividend has been recommended for the year ended March 
31st2021. 

V Listing on Stock Exchanges BSE Limited 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001. 

MSEI Limited 
Vibgyor Towers, 4th floor, Plot No C 62, G - Block, Opp. Trident 
Hotel, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 098 

VI Stock Code BSE - 531784 & MSEI – KCLINFRA 
 ISIN Number INE469F01026 

VII. Market Price Data: 

The following table gives the monthly high and low of Company's share price on the Stock Exchange, 
Mumbai. 

 

Month Company' s Share Price on BSE BSE 
Sensex 

      Monthly High 
(In Rs.) 

Monthly Low 
(In Rs.) 

High Low 

April, 2020 0.73 0.73 33,887.25 27,500.79
May, 2020 0.70 0.67 32,845.48 29,968.45
June, 2020 0.78 0.61 35,706.55 32,348.10
July, 2020                    

1.11 
0.81

38,617.03 34,927.20
August, 2020 0.98 0.74 40,010.17 36,911.23
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September,2020                    
0.77 

                                          
0.70 

 39,359.51 36,495.98
October, 2020 0.96 0.76 41,048.05 38,410.20
November, 2020 1.05 0.95 44,825.37 39,334.92
December, 2020 2.15 1.01 47,896.97 44,118.10
January, 2021 2.22 1.62

50,184.01 46,160.46
February, 2021 1.59 0.94 52,516.76 46,433.65
March, 2021 1.20 

 

0.96

51,821.84 48,236.35
 
 Registrar & Share Transfer Agent: 

Adroit Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. 

17-20, Jafferbhoy Ind. Estate, 1st Floor, Makwana Road, Marol Naka, Andheri(E), Mumbai 400059, 
India. Ph.: 022-28594060, Fax: 022-28594442 Email: rameshg@adroitcorporate.com 

Share Transfer System 

All the transfer received are processed by the Registrars and Transfer Agents and approved by the Board/ 
Share Transfer Committee. 

VIII. Shareholding Details 

A. Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2021: 

 
 Category No. of Shares Held Percentage of Shareholding 

A PROMOTERS HOLDING:   

1. Promoters : 
a. Indian Promoters  
b. Foreign Promoters 

 
                    6108895 

                     0.00 

 
23.20% 

0.00% 
2. Person acting in concert   
 Sub-total (A) 61,08,895 23.20% 
B NON-PROMOTER'SHOLDING:   
1. Institutional Investors   
 a. Mutual Funds and UTI       0.00 0.00% 
 b. Banks, Financial Institutions, 

Insurance Companies [Central 
/ State Govt. Institutions / 
Non-government Institutions] 

   29,210 0.11% 

 c. FIIs        0.00 0.00% 
 d. Sub-total (B)        0.00 0.00% 
C OTHERS:   
 a. Body Corporate 39,91,402 15.16% 
 b. Indian Public   1,61,57,517 61.36% 
 c. NRIs / OCBs        1375 0.01% 
 d. Any other           250 0.00% 
   clearing Members       42351 0.16% 
 Sub-total (C)    2,02,22,105 76.69% 
 Grand Total (A+B+C)    2,63,31,000 100.00% 
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IX. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31 March,2021 
 

No of 
Equity 
Shares 

No. of 
Shareholders 

% of 
shareholders 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
shareholdin
g 

Up to 100 659 24.22 67552 0.13

101 to 500 721 26.50 496536 0.94

501 to 1000 342 12.57 597936 1.14

1001 to 2000 289 10.62 920310 1.75

2001 to 3000 168  6.17 874540 1.66

3001 to 4000 70 2.57 508384 0.97

4001 to 5000 74 2.72 708254 1.34

5001 to 10000 163 5.99 2387888 4.53

1,00,01 and above 235 8.63 23050300 87.53

Grand Total 2721 100 26331000 100

 

X. Dematerialization and Liquidity 

The shares of the Company are traded in dematerialized form under the depository system of the National 
Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL). 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Particulars No. of Shareholders No. of Shares Holding % 

1. Held in Dematerialized with 
CDSL 

1402     18287981 69.45 

2. Held in Dematerialized with 
NSDL 

1118      6826389 25.93 

3. Held in Physical 201       1216630 4.62 

 Total 2721      26331000    100 

At present, the company's shares are fully available for trading in the depository systems of both NSDL and 
CDSL, as on 31st March, 2021 95.38% of the total equity share capital exists under the electronic form. Those 
shareholders, who have still not got their shares dematerialized, are advised to do so, as soon as possible, in 
view of many advantages that exists therein. 

XI. Outstanding ADRs/GDRs/ Warrants  or any convertible instruments: 

The Company had not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments in the past and hence 
as on 31st March, 2021 the Company does not have any outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or convertible 
instruments. 

XII. Plant Locations: 



67 

 

Company is engaged in the business of infrastructure (i.e. Construction and development of properties); 
therefore, it does not have any manufacturing plants. 

 

XIII. Address for correspondence: 
1. Adroit Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. 

17-20, Jafferbhoy Ind. Estate,1st Floor, Makwana Road, Marol Naka, Andheri (E), Mumbai 400059, India. 

Contact No : +91-22- 4227 0400 /2859 6060 / 2859 4060 

E-mail : rameshg@adroitcorporate.com 

2. KCL Infra Projects Limited 
Registered Office: B-3/204, Saket Complex Thane (West) Maharashtra - 400601 
E-mail: info@kclinfra.com 
CIN: L45201MH1995PLC167630. 

Corporate office: KCL Business Park 

3rdFloor, Plot No. 46-47, PU 4 Commercial Behind C-21 Mall, A.B. Road, Indore Madhya Pradesh 
452010. 

XIV. AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE ONCORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

The Company has obtained a certificate from its statutory auditors M/s Scan & Co. (Previously known as M.S. 
Singhatwadia & Co.), Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg. No. 113954W) confirming compliance with the 
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulation with the Stock 
Exchanges. This Certificate is annexed to the Directors' Report for the year 2020-21. This certificate will be sent 
to the stock exchanges along with the Annual Report to be filed by the Company. 

XVI. DECLARATION REGARDING AFFIRMATION OF CODE OFCONDUCT: 

In confirmation with the Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 the Company has obtained written 
confirmation from the Directors that the company has complied with the Code of conduct applicable to the 
Company by the pursue of any Legislation. 

 
For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

KCL Infra Projects Limited 
 

   Date: August 10,2021                 Sd/-               Sd/-
  
   Place : Thane                                                                               Mohan Jhawar                                      Rahul Khande
                               
                                                                                                           (Managing Director)                                   (Director)
                                                        DIN:00495473                                 sDIN:08095192 
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

[Under regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) 

Regulations, 2015] 

 
 

To, 
The Members 
KCL INFRA PROJECTS LIMITED 
[CIN: L45201MH1995PLC167630] 

 
We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by KCL infra Projects Limited, for 
the year ended March 31, 2021, as stipulated  
in regulation 34 (3) read with schedule V of the SEBI ( Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 
2015. 

 
The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was 
limited to a review of procedures and implementation thereof, by the company for ensuring the compliance of the 
conditions of corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the 
company. 

 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the 
representations made by the directors and management, we certify that the company has complied with conditions of 
corporate governance as stipulated in the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015. 

 
We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.  
 

 
For Scan & Co. 

(Previously known as M.S. Singhatwadia and Co.)  
Chartered Accountant 

FRN: 113954W 
 

Sd/- 
Aman Saluja 

(Partner) 
M. No. 181347 

  
Place: Indore 
Date: June 30,2021 
UDIN: 21181347AAAAAV1454 
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CFO Certification 

Under Regulation 17(8) and Part B of Schedule II of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 
To, 
The Board of Directors 
KCL Infra Projects Ltd. 

 

1. I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021 and to the 
best of my knowledge and belief: 

(a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading; 

(b) These statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity's affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

2. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity during the year 
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity's code of conduct. 

3. I accept the responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that I 
have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining to financial reporting 
and I have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such 
internal controls, if any, of which I am aware and the steps I have taken or propose to take to rectify these 
deficiencies. 

4. I have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee:- 

(a) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

(b) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements; and instances of significant fraud of which I have become aware and the 
involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the listed entity's 
internal control system over financial reporting; and 

(c) instances of significant fraud of which I have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 
management or an employee having a significant role in the listed entity's internal control system over 
financial reporting. 
 

Yours Sincerely, 
 

Sd/- 
Sunny Khande 

(CFO) 
Place: Thane 
Date: June 30,2021 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To,  
The Members  
KCL Infra Projects Limited 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of KCL Infra Projects Limited(“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and 
Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”). 
 
Unqualified Opinion 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Financial 
Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under    section 133 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the profit and total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 
together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial 
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. There is no key audit matter to be communicated in our report. 
Emphasis of Matter  
Our opinion is not modified in respect of the following matters: 
In respect of Company borrowing from banks and financial Institutions, company has availed moratorium of 
payment of installments up to 31st August, 2020. After that the company applied for One Time Restructuring of loan 
to Financial Institution and EMI were not paid by the company due to that the amount of EMI was overdue for more 
than 90 days, hence was classified as Non-Performing Asset by the Financial Institution. The approval of 
restructuring came on 7th march 2021 One Time Restructuring under resolution framework given by RBI. 
 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including 
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Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, 
but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 
In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 

Management’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 
the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 
The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

i. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

iii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 
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iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes 
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be 
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 
financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 
the relevant books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of 
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our 
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
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requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions 
of section 197 of the Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has no pending litigation as on March 31, 2021 its financial position in its 
Financial Statements. 

ii. The Company does not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There has been no amount, which is required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government 
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 
 

 For SCAN & Co. 
 

 Chartered Accountants 
 (Firm Reg. No.113954W) 
  

 
 

Sd/- 
 CA Aman Saluja 
Place: Indore Partner 
Date: June 30, 2021 
UDIN:21181347AAAAAV1454 

M. No. 181347 
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of KCL Infra 
Projects Limited  

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report to the Members of KCL Infra Projects Limited  
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KCL Infra Projects Limited (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for 
the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
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financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that  
(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
Company; and  
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
Opinion 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in 
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 

 
 

 For SCAN & Co. 
 Chartered Accountants 
 (Firm Reg. No.113954W) 
  

                                                         Sd/- 
 CA Aman Saluja 
Place: Indore Partner 
Date: June 30,2021 
UDIN:21181347AAAAAV1454 

M. No. 181347 
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Annexure - B to Independent Auditor’s Report 

Referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report 
of even date to the members of KCL Infra Projects Limited 

i) In respect of the Company’s Fixed Assets: 
a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of fixed assets. 
b. As explained to us, the fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the 

management during the year, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of 
the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies between the book records 
and the physical inventory have been noticed. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is 
reasonable. 

c. There are no immovable property held in the name of the Company. 
ii. As explained to us the physical verification of the inventory has been conducted at reasonable 

intervals by the management and no material discrepancies were noticed and the same have been 
properly dealt with in the books of accounts.  

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loan, 
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or other parties covered in 
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence the provisions of para 
3 clauses (iii) of the said Order are not applicable to the company. 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,2013 are applicable. 

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted deposits from the public. 

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under Section 
148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the company. Thus, 
reporting under clause 3 (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of Statutory dues: 

a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues 
including Provident Fund, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and 
other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. As 
explained to us the company did not have any dues on account of employee’s state 
insurance and duty of excise. 

b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, income Tax, 
Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other and other material statutory 
dues in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable. 

c) The disputed statutory dues pending before appropriate authorities is as follows: 

S.No Name of the 
Statute 

Nature of 
the Dues 

Pending 
Amount 

Period to 
which relates 
the amount 

Forum 
where 
dispute is 
pending 
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viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and as per the information and 

explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial 
institution, bank or government as on the balance sheet date.  

ix.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). 

x. During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the Company, carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material 
fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of 
such case by the management.  

xi.       According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has paid / provided for managerial remuneration in 
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with 
Schedule V to the Act. 

xii. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company is not a 
Nidhi Company therefore, the provision of para 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the 
Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.  

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year, therefore the provision 
of para 3 (xiv)  of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him during the 
year, hence the provision of para 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934 therefore, the provision of para 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company for the 
year under audit 

 For SCAN & Co. 
 Chartered Accountants 
 (Firm Reg. No.113954W) 
  

 
 

                                 Sd/- 
 

 CA Aman Saluja 
Place: Indore Partner 
Date: June 30,2021 
UDIN:21181347AAAAAV1454 

M. No. 181347 

1. MP VAT 
ACT 2002 

VAT(Tax 
penalty) 

148973/- AY 2015-16 Appellate 
Tribunal 
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KCL INFRA PROJECTS LIMITED 
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021 

 

1. Corporate Information 

KCL Infra Projects Limited ('the Company') is a Limited Company, domiciled in India under the provision of the 
Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at B-3/204, SAKET COMPLEX THANE (WEST), THANE, 
MAHARASTRA 400601, India. The Company is engaged in the business of Construction & Infrastructure 
Activities. In addition to that company is also engaged in providing advisory services. 
 

2. Significant Accounting Policies of Financial Statements 

The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements 
are listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in 
these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated. 

 

(i)  Statement of compliance 

The financial statement have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting standards (“Ind AS”) 
notified, under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2016  and the relevant 
provisions of the Act. 
 

(ii) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements  

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS), under 
the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at 
fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies mentioned below. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating 
cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has ascertained its 
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and 
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

Functional and Presentation of Currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency.  

 

(iii) Use of Estimates, Judgments and Assumptions 

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgments, estimates and assumptions about 
the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and 
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected. 
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Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of 
impairment, useful lives of property and plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets, provisions and 
contingent liabilities, fair value measurements of financial instruments and retirement benefit obligations as 
discussed below. 

 

Impairment 

The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on future cash flows after 
considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rates and 
anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using internal 
forecasts. The cash flows are discounted using a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. 

 

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each 
reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation and amortization expense in future 
periods.  

 

Valuation of deferred tax assets 

The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. 

 

Provisions and contingent liabilities 

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as result of a past event and it is probable 
that the outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can 
be made. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements.  

 

Fair value measurements of financial instruments 

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured 
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including 
Discounted Cash Flow Model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, 
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair value. Judgements include 
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risks, credit risks and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these 
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.  

 

 

Retirement benefit obligations 
The Company’s retirement benefit obligations are subject to number of judgments including discount rates, 
inflation and salary growth. Significant judgments are required when setting these criteria and a change in these 
assumptions would have a significant impact on the amount recorded in the Company’s balance sheet and the 
statement of profit and loss. The Company sets these judgments based on previous experience and third party 
actuarial advice.  
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(iv) Property, plant and equipment 
An item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition 
principle is applied to costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also to 
costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, 
including regular servicing, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. When a replacement 
occurs, the carrying value of the replaced part is de-recognized. Where an item of property, plant and equipment 
comprises major components having different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate 
items. 

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or deemed cost applied on transition to Ind AS, less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment. Cost includes all direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its 
working condition and location for its intended use. Trial run expenses (net of revenue) are capitalized. 
Borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction is capitalized as part of cost of qualifying asset. 

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference 
between sale proceeds and carrying value of such item, and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 
 
Subsequent expenditure 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the 
expenditure will flow to the company. 
 
Depreciation of Fixed Assets 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on Written down value method (WDV) as per the 
useful life of the assets in the manner as specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The estimated 
useful life of assets and estimated residual value is taken as prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 
2013.  
Depreciation on additions during the year is provided on pro rata basis with reference to date of 
addition/installation. Depreciation on assets disposed/discarded is charged up to the date on which such asset 
is sold. 

 

(v) Investments in subsidiaries 

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost/deemed cost applied on transition to Ind AS, less accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of investment is 
assessed and an impairment provision is recognized, if required immediately to its recoverable amount. On 
disposal of such investments, difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount is recognized in 
the statement of profit and loss. 

(vi) Revenue 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognized to the 
extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the company and the revenue can be measured 
reliably and there is no continuing effective control/managerial involvement in respect of the revenue activity as 
described below. 

Sale of Services 

Revenue from sale of services is recognized when agreed contractual task has been completed or services are 
rendered. 

Interest and Dividend 

Interest income is recognized on accrual basis using the effective interest method. Dividend income is 
recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the company’s right to receive payment is established. 
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(vii) Employee benefits 

 

a) Defined benefit plans 

The liability for gratuity a defined benefit plan is determined annually by a qualified actuary using the projected 
unit credit method.  

The Company pays gratuity to the employees who have completed 5 Years of service with company at the time 
when the employee leaves the company as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. 

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan 
assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized 
immediately in OCI. Net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying 
the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of 
the financial year after taking into account any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments during 
the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss. 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to 
past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Company 
recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs. 

 

b) Defined contribution plans 

The Company’s payments to the defined contribution plans are recognized as expenses during the period in 
which the employees perform the services that payment covers. Defined contribution plan comprise of 
contribution to the employees’ provident fund with government, Employees’ State Insurance and Pension 
Scheme. 

 

c) Short term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the 
amount expected to be paid if the company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a 
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

 

d) Other Employee benefits 

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in 
which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of obligation as 
at the Balance sheet date determined based on an actuarial valuation.  

(viii) Income Tax 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that 
it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in OCI. 

a) Current tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any 
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends. 

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company: 

a)  has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and 
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b)  Intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

b) Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax 
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally 
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be 
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities 
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset 
to be recovered.  
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which 
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, 
which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax 
liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be 
measured reliably, and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if: 

a) The entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities;  

b) The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 
authority on the same taxable entity. 

 

(ix) Foreign currency transactions and translations 

The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the 
Company and the presentation currency for the financial statements. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the company at the 
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at 
the exchange rate at the reporting date. Difference arising on settlement of monetary items are generally 
recognized in statement of profit and loss.  

Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the 
functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Exchange difference arising out of 
these transactions are generally recognized in statement of profit and loss. 

 

(x) Borrowing cost 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which 
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added 
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale. 

Qualifying asset are the assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use.  
Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 
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Investment income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

(xi) Cash and Cash Equivalent 

In cash flow statement, Cash and cash equivalent  includes the cash and Cheques in hand, bank balances, 
demand deposits with bank and other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturity of three 
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value. 

Bank overdraft is shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet and forms part of financing 
activities in the cash flow statement. Book overdraft are shown within other financial liabilities in the balance 
sheet and forms part of operating activities in the cash flow statement. 

 

(xii) Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effect of 
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments and 
items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flow. The cash flow from operating, 
investing and financing activities of the company is segregated based on the available information. 

 

(xiii) Earnings per Share 

i) Basic earnings per shares is arrived at based on net profit / (loss) after tax available to equity shareholders 
divided by Weighted average number of equity shares, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued 
during the year (if any) and excluding treasury shares. 

ii) Diluted earnings per shares is calculated by dividing Profit attributable to equity holders after tax divided by 
Weighted average number of shares considered for basic earning per shares including potential dilutive equity 
shares. 

 

(xiv) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and there is reliable estimate of the amount of obligation. 

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the 
existence of which will be confirmed only on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that arise from past events where it 
is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot 
be made.  

(xv) Leases 

As a Lessee 

A lease is classified at the inception date as finance lease or an operating lease. Leases under which the company 
assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. When acquired, 
such assets are capitalized at fair value or present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of lease, 
whichever is lower. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability 
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are 
recognized in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 
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Other leases are treated as operating leases, with payments are recognized as expense in the statement of profit 
and loss on a straight line basis over the lease term 

 

(xvi) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non-financial asset or 
a group of non-financial assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the company estimates the amount of 
impairment loss. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that 
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or 
group of assets is considered as cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable 
amount of the individual asset/cash generating unit is made. 

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable amount. 
Losses are recognized in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the company considers that 
there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of 
impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after 
the impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or 
loss.    

 

(xvii) Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than 
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the 
fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are 
immediately recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign currency foreign exchange forward 
contracts, interest rate swaps and currency options; and embedded derivatives in the host contract. 

 

Effective interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of 
allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where 
appropriate, a shorter period. 

 

(A) Financial assets 

 

Classification 

The Company shall classify financial assets and subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through 
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for managing 
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

 

Initial recognition and measurement 
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All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the 
acquisition of the financial asset, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss. 
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation 
or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the 
company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

 

Measured at Amortized cost 

A financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash 
flows, and 

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance 
income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.  

 

Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

A financial asset is measure at FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the 
financial assets, and 

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 

 

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at 
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the 
company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the 
profit and loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is 
reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is 
reported as interest income using the EIR method. 

 

Financial Asset at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 

FVTPL is a residual category for financial asset. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for 
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

In addition, the company may elect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or 
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). 

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in 
the profit and loss. 

 

De-recognition 
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A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar financial assets) 
is primarily de-recognized (i.e. removed from the company’s balance sheet) when: 

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

ii)  The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation 
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ 
arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

iii)  When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a 
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of 
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the 
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the 
extent of the company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognizes an associated 
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights 
and obligations that the company has retained. 

iv)  Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the 
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the 
company could be required to repay. 

 

Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities, 
deposits, and bank balance. 

b) Trade receivables. 

 

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on: 

i) Trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component. 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. 
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right 
from its initial recognition.  

ii) For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines 
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk 
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit 
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the 
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.   

 

(B) Financial liabilities 

 

Classification 
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The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be 
subsequently measured at fair value. 

 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or 
amortized costs.  

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, financial guarantee 
contracts and derivative financial instruments. 

 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are 
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category 
also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the group that are not designated as hedging 
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified 
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the 
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, 
fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. This gains/loss is not 
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 
All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

 

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as 
well as through the EIR amortization process. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 
and loss. 

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings. 

 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the 
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
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Measurement of fair values 

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for financial 
instruments. 
The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The 
management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party 
information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the management 
assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the 
requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be 
classified. 
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as 
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the 
valuation techniques as follows. 

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value 
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value 
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period 
during which the change has occurred. 
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                                                                      KCL INFRA PROJECTS LIMITED 

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

30Financial Instruments 

30.1 Risk management frameworks      

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 
The Company’s primary risk management focus is to minimize potential adverse effects of risks on its financial 
performance. The Company’s risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify 
and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks 
and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed regularly to 
reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee 
is responsible for overseeing the Company’s risk assessment and management policies and processes.  

(i) Market risk       

Market risk is the risk of changes the market prices on account of foreign exchange rates, interest rates and 
Commodity prices, which shall affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of its financial 
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposure within 
acceptable parameters, while optimizing the returns.     

(a) Interest Rate Risk       
Interest rate risk is the risk the fair value or future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rate. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair value of fixed interest 
bearing financial instrument because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk 
that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing financial instrument will fluctuate because of fluctuations 
in the interest rates. 

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the borrowing from 
banks. Currently company is not using any mitigating factor to cover the interest rate risk. 
 

Particulars As at 31st 
March,2021 

As at 31st 
March,2020 

Interest rate risk exposure   
Borrowings from banks & Financial 
Institution 

38,953,191 37,459,174 

Total borrowings 38,953,191 37,459,174 
 

(ii)Credit Risk       

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument 
fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers. 
Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the 
creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The 
Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its estimate of incurred 
losses in respect of trade and other receivables and investments.     
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Trade and other receivables       

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. 
The demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry has an influence on credit risk 
assessment. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously 
monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of 
business.   

Summary of the Company's exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as 
follows:         
           (Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020 

Past due 0–90 days 28,150,924 103,360,917 
Past due 91–180 days 7,202 - 
Past due more than 180 days 106,757,550 9,805,087 

TOTAL 1,349,150,46 113,166,003 
 
The following table summarizes the change in the loss allowances measured using expected credit loss 

 

Particulars Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 - 
Provided during the year - 
Reversed during the year - 

  

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 - 
 
(iii) Liquidity Risk   
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. 
The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. The company's 
treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, process 
and policies related to such risk are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the company's net 
liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows. 
 
Expected contractual maturity for derivative and non-derivative Financial Liabilities: 

As at 31st March, 2021 
Carrying 
amount 

Less than 1 
year     

1-5 years >5 years 

Non-derivative financial liabilities     

Secured term loans and borrowings 38,395,317 - 4644889- 33750428 

Current maturities of long term 
borrowings 

557,874 557,874 - - 

Trade Payables 
Other financial liabilities  

106,005,934 106,005,934 -           -      

14,236,919 4,079,020 10,157,899           -      

Total 159,196,044 110,642,828 14802788 33750428 

Derivative Financial Liabilities 
Forward Contact Outstanding - - - - 

Total - - - - 
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As at 31st March, 2020 Carrying 
amount 

Less than 1 
year     

1-5 years >5 years 

Non-derivative financial liabilities     
Secured term loans and borrowings 33,082,408 - 20,088,388 12,994,020 

Current maturities of long term 
borrowings 

4,376,766 4,376,766 - - 

Trade Payables 
Other financial liabilities  

95,684,066 95,684,066 - 

- 7,375,338 1,744,605 5630733 
Total 140,518,578 107,436,170 25719121 12,994,020 

Derivative Financial Liabilities 
Forward Contact Outstanding - - - - 

Total - - - - 
 
 
Note 32.2 Capital Management 
 
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities 
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. The Company’s 
objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue 
to provide returns to shareholders and other stake holders. 
Gearing Ratio 
A. The Company’s adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio was as follow: 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020 

Equity Share Capital 52,662,000 52,662,000 

Other Equity 139,983,373 139,008,481 

Total Equity 192,645,373 191,670,481 

Non-current borrowings 38,395,317 33,082,408 

Current maturities of long term borrowings  5,57,874 4,376,766 

Gross Debt 38,953,191 37,459,174 

Gross debt as above 38,953,191 37,459,174 

Less: cash and cash equivalents 1,370,212 798,406 

Net Debt 37,582,979 36,660,768 

Net Debt to equity ratio (0.19) (0.19) 

Note 32.3 Financial instruments by Category and fair value hierarchy     
            
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial 
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values. The 
fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 2 and level 3 categories above have 
been determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow 
analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counter parties. 
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As at 31st March,31st March,2021 Fair Value Measurement Fair Value Hierarchy 

Particulars 
FVTPL 

FVTOC
I 

Amortized 
Cost 

Level
-1 

Level-
2 

Level
-3 

            

Financial assets        

(i)  Investments in Equity Instruments - - - - - - 

(ii) Trade receivables - - 134,915,046 - - - 

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,370,212 - - - 

(iv) Bank Balance other than above - -  
- - - - 

(v)  Loan 
(vi) Other financial assets   

110,804,837 
214,017 

   

Total    247,304,112    

Financial liabilities        

(i)  Borrowings 
(ii) Trade Payables 
(iii) Other financial liability 
(iv) Current maturities of long term 
borrowing 

- 
- 
- 

 
- 
 

- 
- 
- 

 
- 
 

38,395,317 
106,005,934 

14,236,919 
 
557,874 

 

- 
- 
- 

 
-  

- 
- 
- 

 
-  

- 
- 
- 

 
-  

Total   159,196,044    

 
 

As at 31st March,2020 Fair Value Measurement Fair Value Hierarchy 

Particulars 
FVTPL 

FVTOC
I 

Amortized 
Cost 

Level
-1 

Level-
2 

Level
-3 

            

Financial assets        

(i)  Investments in Equity Instruments - - - - - - 

(ii) Trade receivables - - 113,166,003 - - - 

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents - - 798,046 - - - 

(iv) Bank Balance other than above - -  
- - - - 

(v)  Loan 
(vi) Other financial assets 

  127,085,743 
214,017 

   

Total    241,263,809    

Financial liabilities  -      

(i)  Borrowings 
(ii) Trade Payables 
(iii) Other financial liability 
(iv) Current maturities of long term 
Borrowing 

- - 

33,082,408 
95,684,066 
7,375,338 
4,376,766 

- - - 

 
- -     

Total   140,518,578    
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To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has 
classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the Ind AS. An explanation for each level is 
given below. 
 
Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
directly or indirectly observable. 
Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable. 
 
 33.Balance in respect of Sundry Creditors, Sundry Debtors & Loans and Advance (including interest  
thereon) are subject to confirmation from respective parties. 
 
34. Additional information pursuant to provisions of paragraph 5 of schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Expenditure incurred in foreign currency during the year Nil 
CIF Value of Imports of Capital Goods Nil 
 
35. Contingent Liabilities  

 

Particulars As on 31st March, 2021 As on 31st March, 2020 

Related to Indirect Taxes 148,973 148,973 
 
36. As per the definition of Business Segment and Geographical Segment contained in Ind AS 108 “Segment             
Reporting”, the management is of the opinion that the Company’s operation comprise of operating in Primary 
and Secondary market and incidental activities thereto, there is neither more than one reportable business 
segment nor more than one reportable geographical segment and, therefore, segment information is not required 
to be disclosed. 
 
37. Details of amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise under the head current liabilities, based on 
the information available with the Company and relied upon by the auditors- Nil (Previous Year – Nil). 
 
38. In the opinion of the management, all current assets, loans and advances would be realizable at least an 
amount equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. Also there is no impairment of fixed 
assets. 
39. Previous year's figures have been reclassified regrouped and rearranged wherever found necessary to make 
them comparable 

 
40.Related Party Disclosures  
(i)List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken 
place and relationships: 
Nature of Relationship Name of the Related Party 
Key Management Personnel (KMP) 
 

Mohan Jhawar (Managing Director) 
Sunny Khande (CFO)  
Pavitra  Jhanjhri(Resigned on 8th January 2020) 
Shruti Sikarwar ( resigned on 10th march 2021) 
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Enterprises where key management 
personnel exercise significant influence 

KCL Stock Broking Ltd. 
KCL Realities Ltd. 
KCL Entertainment Pvt. Ltd. 
 

 
  (ii) Disclosure in Respect of Related Party Transactions during the year : 

Particulars Relationship FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20 
Remuneration Paid  -  
Mohan Jhawar KMP                                   - 32,40,000 
Sunny Khade KMP                   4,80,000                4,80,000 
Apeksha Baisakhiya KMP - 85,071 
Pavitra Jhanjhri KMP -                              53,821 
Shruti Sikarwar KMP 1,40,935  
Paridhi Jhawar Related Party                          6,00,000                          4,50,000 

Total 38,58,892 4,545,571 
 
As per our report of even date attached 
  

 
                                 For and behalf of the Board of Directors 
                                             KCL Infra Projects Limited  
 
 
 

  
For  SCAN & Co.       Mohan Jhawar                         Rahul Khande 
Chartered Accountants  (Managing Director)                                    (Director) 
(Firm Reg. No.: 113954W)      (DIN: 00495473)                        (DIN:08095192) 
   

 
  
CA Aman Saluja         Sunny Khande  
Partner  Chief Financial Officer    
M.No. 181347   
   
Sd/-   
Place:  Thane    
Date: June 30,2021 
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FORM NO. MGT-11 
PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014] 

Name of the Member(s)    
Registered Address                                              
E-mail Id Folio No /Client ID DP ID 
I/We, being the member(s) of ____________shares of the above named company. Hereby appoint 
Name : E-mail Id: 
Address: 
Signature , or failing him 
 
Name : E-mail Id: 
Address: 
Signature , or failing him 
 
Name : E-mail Id: 
Address: 
Signature , or failing him 
as my/ our proxy to attend and vote( on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 26Th Annual General 
Meeting to be held on the 30th day of September 2021 at _____ a.m. / p.m. at ____________(place) and at any 
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 
Resolution No. 
Sl. 
No. 

Resolution(S) Vote 
For  Against 

1. Adoption of statement of Profit & Loss, Balance Sheet, report of Director’s and 
Auditor’s for the financial year 31st March, 2021 

  

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Manoj Kumar Chaurasiya (DIN: 
08302587) Director of the Company who retires and being eligible offers 
herself for re-appointment.  

  

3. Increase in Authorised Share Capital of the Company and consequential 
amendment in Memorandum of Association of the Company 

  

4 Voluntary Delisting of Equity Shares of the Company from the Metropolitan 
Stock Exchange 

  

* Applicable for investors holding shares in Electronic form. 
 
Signed this _____day of _____20___ 
 
 
Signature of Shareholder          Signature of Proxy holder        Signature of the shareholder 

Across Revenue Stamp 
Note: 
1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of 
the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
2) The proxy need not be a member of the company. 

Affix 
Revenue 
Stamps 


